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January 9, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to enter into a Retroactive, Sole Source amendment to an existing contract
with Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (VC#177511), Keene, NH for the continuation of
Rapid Re-Housing, Permanent Housing program and support services for individuals and families
facing homelessness through the Federal Continuum of Care Program, by exercising a contract
renewal option by increasing the total price limitation by $123,475 from $359,036 to $482,511 and
extending the completion date from December 31, 2022, to December 31, 2023, effective
January 1, 2023, upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on December 18, 2019 (Item
#32), amended on February 17, 2021 (Item #8), and most recently amended on October 27, 2021
(Item #20).

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2023 and are anticipated
to be available State Fiscal Year 2024 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds
in the future operating budgets, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price
limitation and encumbrance's between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and
justified.

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER
PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
N/A

$59,392 $0 $59,392

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
N/A

$118,417 $0 $118,417

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
N/A

$120,126 $0 $120,126

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
N/A

$61,101 $0 $61,101

2023 074-500585
Grants for Pub

Asst and Relief
N/A

$0 $61,738 $61,738

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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2024 074-500585
Grants for Pub

Asst and Relief
N/A

$0 $61,737 $61,737

Subtotal $359,036 $123,475 $482,511

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive to December 31, 2022 to ensure there Is no lapse in services.
As this contract is a result of a contract consolidation, the amendment execution process between
the Department and the Contractor took longer than anticipated. Retroactive approval of this
agreement will allow, the continuation of services critical to the Department's provision of
Permanent Supportive Housing services in Cheshire and Sullivan counties.

This request is Sole Source because federal regulations require all procurement efforts to
be directed by HUD which requires the Department to specify the vendor's name during the annual,
federal, CoC competitive application process for up to a year prior to the grant award being issued.
As the Collaborative Applicant, the Department is required to issue a Request for Proposals,
through the CoC, based on the HUD CoC Program Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO). HUD
reviews and scores vendor applications based on federal rank and review policy, and scoring tools,
created to match the federal NOFO. HUD subsequently awards funding based on strict federal
criteria specifying eligible activities, populations to be served, expected performance outcomes,
and time frames for the application competition and subsequent Departmental agreements. The
Department receives notification of the awards and signed grant agreements from HUD several
months later; at which time agreements, such as that contained in this request, can be executed.

The purpose of this request is for the continuation of a Permanent Housing program that
delivers rental assistance, service access, supportive services and associated administrative
services to individuals and families who face chronic homelessness in order to improve the ability
of participants to live more independently.

At any given time, a minimum of seven households in Cheshire and Sullivan counties will
be served.

This program serves individuals and families experiencing homelessness who would
otherwise be left without permanent housing and likely in unsafe situations. Using the Housing
First model, the Contractor develops Stabilization and Crisis Management plans to facilitate each
participant's movement into sustained permanent housing. Additionally, the Contractor works to
maximize each participant's ability to live more independently by providing connections to
community and mainstream services.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following reports and
information:

•  Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual
agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic information, as well
as income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

•  Data entry into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System,
which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language, of the
original agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2)
additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its
option to renew services for one (1) of the the remaining one (1) year available.
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Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options available, leaving vulnerable individuals and families In unsafe and potentially life-
threatening situations. Additionally, if data is not collected as required by the contract, the
Department will not be in compliance with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of federal
funding for homeless and permanent housing supportive services.

Area Served; Cheshire and Sullivan counties

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #14.267, FAIN #NH0074L1T002109.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lo . Weaver

\ Commissionerhte
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care, Rapid Re-Housing, Permanent Housing Program contract is
by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or
"Department") and Southwestern Community Services, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on December 18, 2019 (Item #32), as amended on February 17, 2021 (Item #8), and most recently
amended on October 27, 2021 (Item #20), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon
the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums
specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2., Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

December 31, 2023

Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$482,511

Modify Exhibit 8, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.4, to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers: NH0074L1T001806 (January 1, 2020 - December 31. 2020)
NH0074L1T001907 (January 1, 2021 - December 31, 2021)

NH0074L1T002008 (January 1, 2022 - December 31, 2022)

NH0074L1T002109 (January 1. 2023 - December 31, 2023)

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

Modify Exhibit 8, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.7, Subparagraph 1.2.7.1, to read:

1.2.7.1. January 1, 2020 - December 31, 2023, not to exceed the amount specified in Form P-
37, General Provisions, Block 1.8., Price Limitation.

Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.8, to read;

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program are as follows:

Description January 1, 2020
through

December 31, 2021

JanuaiV 1, 2022
through

December 31, 2022

January 1, 2023
through

December 31, 2023

Total

Cumulative

Amount

1.2.8.1 Rental Assistance $189,132 $95,616 $99,624 $384,372

1.2.8.2 Supportive Services $42,232 $21,116 $21,116 $162,972

1.2.8.3 Administration $5,470 $5,470 $2,735 $13,675

1.2.8.4 Total Proaram Amount: $236,834 $122,202 $123,475 $482,511

1.2.8.5 25% Required Match $60,576 $30,551 $30,869 $121,996

6. Add Exhibit B-2, Amendment #3, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

—DS

.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-19-A03 Southwestern Community Services, Inc. Contractor Initials.
1/26/2023

A Page 1 of 3 Date-S-1.0
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
In full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective retroactive January 1, 2023, upon Governor
and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

—DocuSign«d by: i

1/26/2023
-  ewec&eBiWAtiie...

Date Name;i<aren Hebert
Title; Division Director

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

f  0»cuSigntd by:

1/26/2023 gxiL fnwds

Nime-S^WtSahiels
Title: chief Executive Officer
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DoeuSign«d by.

1/27/2023 1
Date ~ Name:'''''^Vtf°cuanno

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:
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SCS Rapid Re-Kou9lng

CoC Funds

Exhibit B-2. Amendment S2, Budget

SFY23 - 1/1/23-6/30/23

•  TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SH>VRE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance S  49.812 5 S s 5 • S 1  49.812 S • S

Supportive Services S  lO.SSS i s s $•- 5 5  10.558 S - $

Administration %  1.388 $ s s 5 • $ S  1.388 s -

25S Requred Match S  15.778 $ S  15.778 5 5 • s "

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $  . 77.514 s s 5  15,778 S • $ 5  81,738 S -

SFY24 - 7/1/23-12/31/23

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance

Supponive Services

Administration 1.387 1.387

2SH Required Match
TOTAL HUO FUNOS/BALANCE 77.514

TOTAL - 1/1/23-12/31/23

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance 99.824 99,824 S -

Supportive Seneces

Administration

2S% Required Match 31.SS3

TTTAnroCTnnBSTBXDkHer 15S.02S

Total W/O Match $ 123,475

1/26/202J
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Sccrelar.' of Slate of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY

SERVICES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonpront Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 19, 1965.

1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing

as far as this ofiice is concerned.

Business ID: 65514

Certificate Number: 0005755656

Ua

A

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be alTi.sed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this I lih day of April A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Sccreiaiy of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Kevin Watterson . hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Ofricer of the Corporaiion/LLC: cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/vSecretary/Officer of Southwestern Community Services Inc. .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on June 18 . 2021 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Beth Daniels. CEO ^ (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Southwestern Community Services Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

th'e State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
posltion(s) Indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts wittyfhe State"bf New Hampshire,

. all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:

ignature of Elected Officer
ame: Kevin Watterson

Title: Chairman of the Board

Rev. 03/24/20
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

07/08/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Clark Mortenson Insurance

PO Box 606

Keene NH 03431

CONTACT Ana O'Donnell, CPIW, CIC

(603)352-2121 (603)357-8491

AnrwFSv aoOonnelKShilbgroup.com

INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAlCf

iNSiiRFR A • Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co. 18058

INSURED

Southwestern Community Services Inc.

63 Community Wby

PO Box 603

Keene NH 03431

iN^iiRFRB- Maine Employers Mut Ins Co 11149

INSURER C:

tNSURER 0:

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 2022 to 2023 REVISION NUMBER:

INSR
LTR

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECTTO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

ADSLl POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
LIMITSTYPE OF INSURANCE

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

OCCURCLAIMS-MADE

GENT AGGREGATE UMIT APPUES PER:

poucyD??^ □
OTHER;

LOC

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANYAUTOX

X

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OED

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

X RETENTION $ 10.000
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yai, dea^ba unMr
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bKw

H

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY

1NS& VWD POLICY NUMBER

PHPK2431763

PHPK2431766

PHUB82087e

3102800768

PHPK2431763

(MM/OOWYYY>

06/30/2022

06/30/2022

06/30/2022

04/01/2022

06/30/2022

(MM/DO/YYYY)

06/30/2023

06/30/2023

06/30/2023

04/01/2023

06/30/2023

EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTES
PREMISES fEa oecurrancet

MED EXP (Any ooe paraon)

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OPAGG

COMBINED SINGLE UMIT
fEa acddamt
BODILY INJURY (Par parson)

BODILY INJURY (Par aeeidanl)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acddanH

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

X PER
STATUTE

OTH
ER

E.L EACH ACCIDENT

EL DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

EL DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

1,000,000

100.000

5.000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000-

500,000

500,000

500,000

51,000,000

52.000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Ramartia Schadula, may ba attaehad if mora apaca It rapuirad)

Vibrkers Compensation laws apply for the state of: NH
All Officers are included

Department of Health & Human Services Bureau of Contracts &
129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301
•  1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

G1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Vision Statement

Southwestern Community Services

SCS seeks to create and support a climate within

the communities of southwestern New Hampshire

wherein poverty is never accepted as a chronic or

permanent condition of any person's life.
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Mission Statement

Southwestern Community Services

SCS strives to empower low income people and
families. With dignity and respect, SCS will provide

direct assistance, reduce stressors and advocate for such

persons and families as they lift themselves toward
self-sufficiency.

In partnership and close collaboration with local
communities, SCS will provide leadership and support
to develop resources, programs and services to further

aid this population.
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Financial Statements

SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.

AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2021 AND 2020
AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORTS AND

REPORTS ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL
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SOUTHWESTERN GOMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COIVIPANIES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020
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Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

rKoi'TxsioNAj, AS.';(M:iAnoN

To the Board of Directors of ci-rtimeijpubucaccoun'ian'I's
Southwestern Community Services. Inc. wolfeboro • Noimico.way
Keene, New Hampshire w\'er • concord

yn^ATHAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accornpanyirig consolidated financial statements of Southwestern
Comrnunity Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) and, related companies,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of May 31, 2021, and the
related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

/l/7affaae/T7enf's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or enor.

Auditors' Responsibilitv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves perforrning procedures to obtain audit evidence about the anfiounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accountirig estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

1
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in alj
material respects, the financial position of Southwestern Cortimunity Services, Inc. and related
companies as of May 31, 2021, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative In formation

We have previously audited Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies'
2020 financial statements, and we expressed :an unmodified audit opinion on those audited
financial statements in our report dated October 5, 2020. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended May 31, 2020, is
consistent, In all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived.

Other information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Pnnciples, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the
Schedules of Functional Revenues and Expenses, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
Inforrnatiop has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects. In relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 22, 2021, on our consideration of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting^ and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
oyer financial reporting or on compliance. That report is ah integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Southwestern Community
Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

October 22, 2021

Wojfeborp, New Hampshire
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SOUTHWESTERN COMIVlUNltY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MAY 31.2021 AND 2020

ASSETS

2021 2020

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalenls
Accounts receivable, net

Prepaid expenses'
Notes receivable

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Land and buildings
Vehicles and equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Total property

Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Investment in related parties
Due from related parties
Cash escrow and reserve funds

Security deposits
Other assets

Total other assets

Total assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$  1,722.941
1,781,636

62,628
2,357

3.569.562

28,937,986

565,380

934.441

30,437,807

14.621.952

15.815.855

138,001

55.138

1,471,741

105,790
384

1,771,054

$  1,400,153
1,201,132

57,168
.  2,357

2.660.810

19,243,210

541,236

271.753

20,056,199

8.557.576

11.498.623

198,492

59,067
809,897

69,767

384

1,137,607

$ 21,156^471 $ 15,297,040

Accounts payable $  240,586 $  160,672

Accrued expenses 170,074 87.023

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 244,003 228,394

Other current liabilities 148,854 149,154

Refundable advances 729,955 290,437

Current portion of long term debt 142,174 125,324

Total current liabilities 1,675,646 .  1,041,004

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term debt, less current portion shown above 11,300,411 '8,905,857

Economic Injury Disaster Loan 150,000 -

Paycheck Protection Program loan - 439,070

Total noncurrent liabilities 11.450,411 9,344,927

Total liabilities 13,126,057 10,385,931

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions 7,815,065 4,766,637

With donor restrictions 215,349 144,472

Total net assets 8,030,414 4,911,109

Total liabilities and net assets $ 21,156,471 $  15,297,040

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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DocuSign Envelope ID: EF6B0FB2-0258-421S-B3C8-481BE66658F6

ROUTHWESTFRN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACfIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2021

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Government contracts

Program service fees
Rental income

Developer fee income
Support
Sponsorship
Interest Income

Forgiveness of debt
Miscellaneous

In-kind contributions

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support, and
net assets released from restrictions

EXPENSES

Program services
Home energy programs
Education and nutrition

Homeless programs
Housing services
Economic development services
Other programs

Total program services

Supporting activities
Management and general

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY

LOSS ON INVESTMENT IN LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM
LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR

Without Donor

$ 14,451.497

2.708,902

1.657,741

465,614

21,703

1,402

518,501
239,096
65.414

20,129,870

65,147

20.195.017

5.559,497

2,629,099

5,516,502

2,913,953
621.784
750.430

17,991,265

1.948,672

255,080

With Donor

Restrictions

(60,897)

194,183

4,766,637

2.854.245

136,024

136,024

(65,147)

70.077

70,877

70,877

144,472

2021 2020

Total Total

$ 14,451,497 $ 10,619,721
2,708,902 2,605,816

1,657,741 1,165,032
- 1,508

601.638 593.610

21,703 26.546

1,402 9,224

518,501 79,338
239,096 148,113
65,414 167.553

20,265,894 15,416,461

20.265.894

5,559,497

2,629,099
5,516,502

2,913.953

621,784
750,430

17-,991,265

1,948,672

19,939,937

325,957

(60,897)

265,060

4,911,109

2,854,245

15.416.461

5,153,989

2,687,612
2,060,655

2;433,660
737,663
775,342

13,848,921

1,761,642

15.610.563

(194,102)

(140)

(236)

(194,478)

5,105,587

$  7,815,065 $ 215,349 $ 8,030,414 $ 4,911,109

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOimwgSTgRM COMMUNtTY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOUOATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2021

Education Economic Management

Home Energy and Homeless Housing Development Other Tots! and 2021

Proorams Nutrition Proorams Services ;>ervices Proorams Prooram General Total

Pnyroll S  486.367 S  1.518.514 S  491.084 S  725.103 S  350,843 S  439.136 S 4.011.067 S  752.116 $ 4,763,183

Payroll taxes 25.674 106.568 37.005 43.614 30.248 33,024 276.033 120.497 396.530

Employee twnefits 171.270 381.988 144.229 263.870 55.553 180.793 1.197.703 46.508 1.244.211

Retirement 32.604 85.776 24,671 51,308 20.760 14.238 229.357 66.965 290.322

Aitverlltfng 3.100 386 1,295 1.638 • 6.419 133 6.552

Bank charges 10 . 1.130 4.109 • 11 5.260 6.766 14,026

Computer cost 225 28.110 12.051 7.765 16.171 • 64.322 183.132 247.454

Contractual 1.007.401 12.804 42.954 61.431 680 48.737 1,174.007 59.518 1.233.525

OepredaUon • 26.438 117.967 603.938 • 7.620 755,963 153.192 909,155

Dues/ref^stration • 2.290 - 320 543 • 3.153 8.619 11,772

69 8,160 - • • - 8.229 4.588 1Z817

Insurartce 5.539 15.035 33.483 57.881 15.268 6.890 134.126 43.490 177,616

Interest - 5,955 5.983 48.121 - 1.690 61.749 113.918 175,667

Meeting arxi conferetKe - - • 840 154 133 1.127 1.637 2.764

Miseellaneous expense 2.863 - 1.242 82.239 9.546 1.359 97.249 2.675 99.924

MtaceDaneous taxes -
- - 101.224 - 101.224 300 101.524

Eqiipmenl purchases 386 3.330 - 6.521 10.237 2.808 13.045

Office expense 19.084 17.479 60.872 11.634 2.568 749 112.586 49.579 162.165

300 368 126 37 348 1.179 31.999 33,178

PrcrfessJonal fees 1.050 - 3.300 38.627 • 42.977 81.034 124,011

Staff development and irelnlrtg 3.408 1.327 165 2,488 614 1,185 9,185 17.341 26.526

Sutncrtptiorts - - • 98 - 96 2.767 2.865

Telephone 2.429 3.106 20.692 18.872 2.299 1,117 48.515 47.535 96.050

6,104 12.328 7.212 9.515 16.338 51,497 5,675 57.172

VeMdo 6.147 4.170 1.748" 41.329 35,941 9.852 99.187 3.912 103.099
. 24.659 . - 21.112 45.771 • 45,771

Space costs . 122.478 384,093 718.703 16.731 114 1.242.119 139.968 1.382.087

Direct cfleni assistsrwe 3.788.549 179.702 4.126.109 12.971 24.399 3.782 8,135.512 - 6.135.512
. 65.414 . - 65.414 - 65.414

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL ALLOCATION 5.559.497 2.629.099 S.516.502 2.913,653 621.784 750.430 17.991.265 1,948,672 19.939.937

602,161 284.763 597.504 315.616 87,347 81.281 1.948.672 (1.948.672) .

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES $ 6.161.658 S 2.613.862 . S 6.114.006 S 3.229.569 t  689.131 S  831.711 % 19.939.937 S S 1S.039.937

See Notes to ConsoMdated Rnanclal Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUMfTY SPBVICFS INC. AND RgLATEO COMPANIES

CONSOUDATED STATEMEm* OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2020

Education Economic Management

Home Energy and Homeless Housing Development Other Total and 2020

Proarams Ntrtrltlon Proarams Services Services PrtHirams Proaram and General Total

Payroll $  467.450 S  1.374.787 $  335,905 $  735.214 $  435.177 S  424.014 S 3.772.553 S  731.826 S 4.504.379

Payroll taxes 36.287 107.5M 25.566 56.083 35.147 32.738 293.411 55.964 349.375

Employee benefits 135.770 412.407 121.495 271.770 85.902 193.929 1.221.273 45.011 1.266,284

ReSremeni 29.265 71.941 19.791 58.108 21.016 13.973 214.094 64.115 276.209

Advertising 728 3.084 83 2.632 3.999 2.100 12.626 591 13.217

Bonk charges 4 - 17 4.117 - 54 4.192 7.456 11.648

Bad debt expense . 45 195 • • 240 4.000 4.240

Computar cost • 28.124 5.538 8.120 15.541 57,323 166.243 223.566

Contractual 776.055 18.582 13.624 27.752 2.719 74,250 912.962 41.190 954,172

Depraciallon . 27,369 108.291 366.399 . 10,913 512.972 150.280 663.252

Oues/reglstration 977 • 495 468 1.940 0.720 11.660

OupScatlrrg - 7.480 - • • 7.480 5.684 13.164

Instrance 6.667 13.010 24.560 56.680 14.271 5.968 121.156 36.841 157.997

Interest • 7.198 7.527 36.985 . 51.710 114.881 166.591

Meeting and conferet^ 457 1.042 262 4.913 1.118 2.029 9.821 13.879 23.7W

MisceDanoous expense 3.543 1.597 60 44.189 4.722 163 54.274 18.105 72,379

Mscellaneous taxes - - 61.942 - • 61.942 200 62.142

Eqiipment purchases 24.948 1.646 - 6.426 . - 33.020 30 33,050

Ofltce expense 20,017 8.744 6.002 9,148 10,480 33 54.424 24.136 78.560

Postage 240 261 123 189 262 . 1.065 24.447 25.512

Professional foes 2.045 - 3.200 28,718 . 706 34.669 89.175 123.844

Staff dev^opmcnl errd training - 2.135 648 1.208 415 3.088 7.494 2.787 10.281

Subscripdons - - - 95 . 95 1.801 1.696

Telephone 2.283 1.968 17.824 17.959 3.179 1.166 44,179 41,601 85.780

Travel 6.792 16.310 12.602 7.545 30.585 15 73.849 3,031 76.880

Vehide 3.902 6.121 5.574 30.676 36.849 9,696 91.820 6.202 100.022

Rent - 25,570 - - - • 25.570 • 25,570

Specacosts - 174,312 352.469 583.375 2.699 69 1.112.944 100.446 1.213.390

Direct cCent assistance 3.637.530 208.759 999.499 12.920 33,124 418 4.692.250 . 4.692.250

In^d expenses 167.553 - - • - 167.553 167.553

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

GENERAL AND MANAGEMENT ALLOCATION 5,153.969 2.687.612 2,060.655 2.433.660 737.663 776,342 13,848,921 1.761,642 15.610,563

Aflocation of management and gerreral expenses 655.609 341.876 282.124 309.572 93.834 98,627 1.761.642 11.701.6421

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES S 5.809.598 $ 3.029.488 S 2.322,779 S  2.743.232 $  831.497 S  873.969 $ 15.610,563 S S 15.610.563

Sm Notes to Consolidated Rnanclal Statements
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DocuSign Envelope ID: EF6B0FB2-0258-4215-B3C8-481BE66658F6

SOUTHWESTERN COIVUVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

2021 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change In net assets $  265,060 $  (194,478)
Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets to
net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation 909,155 663,252
Loss on disposai of properly - 140

Loss on investment in limited partnerships 60,897 236
•  Foi^iveness of debt (518,501) (79.338)
Decrease (Increase) in assets:

Accounts receivable (580,504) 42,337
' Prepaid expenses 31,348 (5,446)

Interest receivable - 45,547
Due from related parties 3,929 35

Security deposits (2.242) (6,771)
(Decrease) increase in liabilities:

Accounts payable 22,045 (230,941)
Accrued expenses 36,929 (32,597)
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 15,609 (5.506)
Other current liabilities (300) 10,414
Refundable advances 439,518 109,443
Interest payable •- (49,547)

NET CASH PRbVlbED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 682,943 266,780

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property (432,400) (136,174)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (432.400) (136,174)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long term debt 85,000 36,679
Repayment of long term debt (272,062) (127,826)
Proceeds from Economic Injury Disaster Loan 150,000 -

Proceeds from Paycheck Protection Program - 439,070

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES (37,062) 347,923

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH 213,481 478,529

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,210,050 1,731,521

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH TRANSFERRED

FROM LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS 771,151 -

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH. END OF YEAR $ 3,194,682 $  2,210.050

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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DocuSign Envelope ID: EF6B0FB2-0258-4215-B3C8-481BE66658F6

SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RFLATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

2021 2020

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during Ihe year for inleresf $ 175,005 $ 165,929

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Property financed by long term debt $ 767,599 $ ^

Transfer of assets from newly consolidated LPs:
Prepaid expenses $ 36,807 $
Land and buildings 3,382,003
Furniture and fixtures 624,491
Security deposits 33.781 ^

Total transfer of assets from newly consolidated LPs $ 4,077,082

Transfer of liabilities from newly consolidated LPs:
Accounts payable $ 57,865
Accrued expenses 46,122
Due to related parties
Long term debt 1,890,298

Total transfer of liabilities from newly consolidated LPs $ 1,994,285

Total partners' capital from newly consolidated LPs $ 2.853,948

Partners' capilal.previously recorded as investment in related parties 297

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

a

Total transfer of partners'capital from newly consolidated LPs $ 2,854,245 $_



OocuSign Envelope ID: EF6B0FB2-0258-4215-B3C8-481BE66658F6

SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation
formed as an umbrella corporation that offers an array of services to the elderly,
disabled, and low-income households in the Cheshire and Sullivan counties of
New Hampshire. Various programs provide assistance in the areas of education,
child development, employment, energy and its conservation, housing, and
homelessness prevention. Services are provided through Southwestern
Community Services, Inc., and its related corporations. SCS Management
Corporation, SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation, SCS Housing
Development, Inc., and various limited partnerships, as described below. The
Organization is committed to providing respectful support services and assisting
individuals and families in achieving self-sufficiency by helping them overcome the
causes of poverty. The primary source of revenues is derived from governmental
contracts.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Southwestern

Corhmunity Services, Inc. and the following entities (collectively the Organization)
as Southwestern Community Services, Inc. has both an economic interest and
control of the entities through a majority voting interest in their governing board.
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic consolidated financial statements.

SCS Management Corporation
SCS Housing, Inc.
SCS Development Corporation
SCS Housing Development, Inc.
Prewsville Carriage House Associates, Limited Partnership (Drewsville)
Troy Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partriership (Troy Senior)
Keene East Side Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Keene
East Side)
Winchester Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Winchester)
Swanzey Tovynship Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Swanzey)
Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Associates, Limited Partnership
(Snow Brook)
Keene Highland Housing Associates. Limited Partnership (Keene Highland)
Wanwick Meadow Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Warwick)



DocuSign Envelope ID; EF6B0FB2-025&-4215-B3C8-481BE66658F6

SOUTHWESTERN COMIVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

note 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared
utilizing the accrual basis of accounting In accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in
accordance with U.S.- generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP),
which require the Organization to report information regarding its financial
position and activities according to the following net asset classifications. The
classes of net assets are determined by the presence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions:- Net assets that are not subject to
donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may
be used at the discretion of the Organization's Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed
by donors and grantors. Some dopor restrictions are temporary in nature;
those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by passage of
time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has
stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

As of May 31, 2021 and 2020, the Organization had net assets without donor
restrictions and with donor restrictions.

The financial statements include certain prior-year , summarized comparative
information in total but not by net asset cjass. Such information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction
with the Organization's financial statements for the year ended May 31, 2020 from
which the sumrfiarized information was derived.

Refundable Advances

The Organization records grant and contract revenue as refundable advances until
it is expended for the purpose of the grant or contract, at which time it is recognized
as revenue.

10



DocuSign Envelope ID; EF6B0FB2-0258-4215-8308-481BE66658F6

SOUTHWESTERN COIVIIViUNITY SERVICES. INC-. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
f continued)

In-Kind Support

The Organization records various types of in-kind support including professional
services and materials. Contributed professional services are recognized If the
service received creates or enhances long-lived assets or requires specialized skill,
are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be
purchased if not provided by donation. Contributions of tangible assets are
recognized at fair value when received.

Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all liquid
Investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported
witt;iin the statements of financial position that sum to the total In the statements of
cash flows as of May 31:

2021 2020

Cash, operations $ 1,722,941 $ 1,400,153
Cash escrow and reserve funds 1.471.741 809.897

Total cash and restricted cash $ 3.194.682 $ 2.210.050

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at May 31, 2021
and 2020. The Organization has no policy for charging interest on overdue
accounts.

11



OocuSign Envelope ID: EF680FB2-0258-4215-B3C8-481BE66658F6

SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

note 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Current Vulnerabtlity Due to Certain Concentrations

The Organization is operated In a heavily regulated environment. The operations
of the Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules and
regulations of federal, state and local regulatory agencies. Such administrative
directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an act of Congress or
Legislature. Such changes may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to
pay for the related cost, including the additional administrative burden, to comply
with a change. For the years ended May 31."2021 and 2020, approximately 71%
and 69%, respectively, of the Organization's total revenue was received from
government agencies. The future nature of the Organization is dependent upon
continued support from the government.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains its cash accounts in several financial institutions,
which at times may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not
experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any
significant risk with respect to these accounts.

Property and Depreciation

Purchased property and equipment are stated at cost at the .date of acquisition
or at fair value at the date of receipt in the case of donated property. The
Organization generally capitalizes and depreciates all assets with a cost greater
than $5,000 and an expected life greater than one year. Depreciation is provided
for using the straight-line method in amounts designed to amortize the cost of
the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows;

Buildings and improvements 10-40 Years
Vehicles and equipment 5-10 Years
Furniture and fixtures 7 Years

The use of certain assets is specified under the terms of grants received from
agencies of the federal government. These grants also place liens on certain
assets and impose restrictions on the use of funds received froiti the dispbsitiori
of the property. Depreciation expense for the years ended May 31, 2021 and 2020
totaled $909,155 and $663,252, respectively.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as Incurred.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMIVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUlVliVIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income Taxes

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and SOS Management Corporation are
exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and are not private foundations. As such, they are exempt from
income tax on their exempt function income.

SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation and SCS Housing Development,
Inc. are taxed as corporations. SCS Housing Inc. has federal net operating loss
cafryfonwards available for the May 31, 2021 and 2020 tax returns totaling
$1,230,191 and $1,135,222, respectively. These loss carryfonwards may be offset
against future taxable income and, if not used, will begin to expire in 2027. SCS
Development Corporation has federal net operating loss carryfonA/ards totaling $542
and $555 at May 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be
offset against future taxable income and, if not used, will begin to expire in 2022.
SCS Housing Development, Inc. has federal net operating loss carryforwards
totaling $59,861 and $35,574 at May 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. These loss
carryforwards may be offset against future taxable income and, if .not used, will begin
to expire in 2035.

The tax effects of the carryfonwards as related to deferred tax assets is as
follows as of May 31, 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020

Tax benefit from loss carryfonA/ards $271,025 $246,404
Valuation allowance (271.025) (246.404)

Deferred tax asset $ : $ :

Drewsville, Troy Senior, Winchester, Keene East Side, Swanzey, Snow Brook,
Keene Highland, and Warwick are taxed as partnerships. Federal income taxes are
npt payable by, or provided for these entities. Earnings and losses are included in
the partners' federal income tax returns based' on their share of partnership,
earnings. Partnerships are required to file income tax returns with the State of New
Hampshire and pay an income tax at the state's statutory rate.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740, "Accounting for Income Taxes,"
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring,
the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements. Management has
analyzed the Organization's tax position taken op its income tax" returns for all
open years and has concluded that ho additional provision for income taxes is
necessary in the Organization's financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: EF6B0FB2-0258-4215-B3C8-481BE66658F6

SOUTHWESTERN COIVIMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COIVIPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC Topic No. 820-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair
value which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a
framework in, generally accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value
which emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-
specific measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair value
measurements. In accordance with ASC 820-10, the Organization may use
valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost approaches to
measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant assumptions in
fair value measurements. Topic 820-10 establishes a fair value hierarchy, which
prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives the
highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3
measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC Topic
820-10 are described as follows:

Level 1 ~ Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in
situations where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability and
the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the pricing of
the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.

The carrying amount of cash, accounts receivables, prepaid expenses, accounts
payable, accrued expenses, and refundable advances approximates fair value
because of the short maturity of those instruments.

Revenue Recoqhition
Amounts received from conditional grants and contracts received for specific
purposes are generally recognized as income to the extent that related expenses
and conditions are incurred or met. Conditional grants received prior to the
conditions bejng met are reported as refundable advances. Contributions of cash
and other assets are reported as with donor restrictions if they are received with
donor imposed stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. However, if a
restriction is fulfilled in the same period in which the contribution is received, the
Organization reports the support as without donor restrictions.
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SOUTHWESTERN CQiVIMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COIVIPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue Recognition (continued)

Program Service Revenue

Program sen/ice revenue is recognized as revenue when the services are
performed.

■Rental Revenue
The Organization derives revenues from the rental of apartment units. Revenues
are recognized as income, monthly, when rents become due and control of the
apartment units is transferred to the lessees. The individual leases are for a term
of one year and are cancelable by the tenants. Control of the leased units is
transferred to the lessee in an amount that reflects the consideration the
Partnership expects to be entitled to in exchange for the leased units. The cost
incurred to obtain a lease will be expensed as incurred.

Performance Obliaations and Contract Assets and Liabilities
The performance obligations related to the lease contracts and program services
are satisfied at a point in time, Revenue from performance obligations satisfied
at a point in time consist of monthly rental payments and fees for program
services. There are no contract assets or liabilities for the years ended May 31,
2021 and 2020.

New Accounting Pronouncement
In May 2014, FASB issued ASU 2014-09 (Topic 606) - Revenue from Contracts
with Customers. The ASU and all subsequently issued clarifying ASUs replaced
most existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP. The ASU also requires
expanded disclosures relating to the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of
revenue from cash.flpws arising from contracts with customers. The Organization
adopted the new standard effective June 1, 2020, the first day of the
Organization's fiscal year using the modified retrospective approach. The adoption
did not result in a change to the accounting for any of the applicable revenue
streams: as such, no cumulative effect adjustment was recorded. See revenue
recognition policy above.

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis. Natural expenses are defined by their nature,
such as salaries, rent,.supplies, etc. Functional expenses are classified by the
type of activity for which expenses are incurred, such as management and
general and direct program costs. Expenses are allocated by function using a
reasonable and consistent approach that is "primarily based on function and use.
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SOUTHWESTERN CQMIVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPArsllES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Functional Allocation of Expenses (continued)

The costs of providing certain program and supporting services have been
directly charged.

The Organization submits an indirect cost/ate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
services. The indirect cost rate is 12% effective from June 1, 2019 through May
31,2022.

NOTE 2 BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $250,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a bank.
Interest is due monthly and is stated at.the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate or at a
floor rate of 4%. The line is secured by all the Organization's assets. As of May
31, 2021 and 2020, the interest rate was 4%. There was no outstanding balance
at May 31, 2021 and 2020.

NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt at May 31, 2021 and 2020 consisted of the following:

1% mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing
in monthly installments for principal and interest of
$891 through August 2032. The note is secured by
real estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 96 Main
Street).

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to
Community Development Finance Authority, in
quarterly principal payments based on an operating
income formula applied to affordable housing
portion of the specified real estate. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (CDFA,
96 Main Street).

5.25% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $988
through March 2021. The note was paid in full
during the year ended May 31, 2021. The riote was
secured by real estate of the Organizatiori
(People's United Bank, Ashuelot).
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$  127,000 $ 136,370
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SOUTHWESTERN CQtVllVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COIVIPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT (continued)
2021 . 2020

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through September 2031, or until project is
sold or refinanced. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 17 Pearl). 242,708 244,505

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through July 2032. unless there is surplus
cash from which to make a payment, or until project
is sold or refinanced. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 41-43 Central). 376,066 376,363

4.25% mortgage payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $1,875
through December 2016, with a balloon payment
that yvas due January 2017. The note was
amended during the year ended May 31, ,2019, and
is now due December 2026. Under the amendment,
interest rate is 4.94% and monthly installments for
principal and interest are $1,957 The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization
(People's United Bank, Milestones). 112,702 130,230

4.375% note payable to Rural Housing Service in
monthly installments for principal and. interest of
$11.050 through May 2049. The note is secured by
real estate of the Organization (TD Bank, Keene
Office). 2,134,970 2,175,749

Non-interest bearing note payable to Cheshire
County in New Hampshire. Payment is not
riecessary ijniess Organization defaults on contract.
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG, Keene Office). 460,000 460,000
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COIVIPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTES LONG TERM DEBT (continued)
2021 2020

Note payable to a bank in monthly installments for
principal and interest of $2,463 including interest
through May 2039. Interest Is adjusted every five
years based on remaining principal balance and
"Classic Advantage Rate" provided by Federal
Home Loan Bank of Boston which resulted in an

interest fate of 4.67% at May 31, 2021 and 2020.
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (ID Bank, Keene Office/Community
Way). 376,617 389,578

5.19% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $889
through May 2021. The note was paid in full during
the year ended May 31, 2021. The note was
secured by real estate of the Organization (TD
Bank, 45 Central Street). - 88,433

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment Is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each year
providing the property Is used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
Ashuelot). 75,000 100,000

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment Is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each year
providing the property is used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (HUD, 112
Charlestown Road). 45,000 60,000
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SOUTHWESTERN CQIVIMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COlViPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT (continued)
2021 2020

Non-Interest bearing note payable to New
Hampshire Housing in annual payments in the
amount of 50% of annual surplus cash through July
2042 at which time the remaining balance is due.
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (NHHFA, Second Chance). 794,189 794,189

Non-interest bearing note payable to a county In
New Hampshire. No payment is due and 5% of the
balance is forgiven each year through 2032 when
the remaining balance becomes due. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (CDBG,
Second Chance). 311,808 328,219

Non-interest bearing note payable to a county in
New Hampshire, relating to an agreement between
the City of Keene and SCS for the purpose of
renovating Keene shelters. In total, SCS will receive
$472,000 from CDBG. SCS wilt receive the funds
as progress is made. The note, is secured by real
estate of the Organization and will be fully forgiven
providing the facility serves low- and moderate-
income individuals for 20 years (CDBG, Keene
Shelter). 326,899 9,500

5.54% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$543 through August 2022. The note is secured by
a vehicle (Ally, Econoline Van). 7,815 12,637

6.54% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$442 through November 2023. The note was paid
iri full during the year ended May 31, 2021. The
note vvas secured by a vehicle (Ally, GMC Acadia). i 5,903

2.99% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $820
-through May 2031. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organizatipn (Savings Bank of
Walpole, 45 Central Street).- 84,39.5
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SOUTHWESTERN CQMIVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COIVIPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE S LONG tERM DEBT (continued)
2021 2020

Non^interest bearing note payable to a county in
New Hampshire,, relating to an agreement between
the City of Keene and SOS for the purpose of
renovating Keene shelters. In total, SOS will receive
$472,000 from CDBG. SOS will receive the funds
as progress is made. The note Is secured by real
estate of the Organization and will be fully fprgiven
providing the facility serves low- and moderate-
income individuals for 20 years (CDBG, Elm Street .
Shelter). 189,100

Non-interest bearing note payable to the City of
Keene, New Hampshire. The note expires in June
2022 and payment is not necessary unless the
Organization defaults on contract. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (City of
Keene, 139 Roxbury Street). 77,100

Non-interest bearing note payable to the City of
Keene, New Hampshire, with an original balance of
$240,000 reduced to $204,000 when the
Organization acquired the note from Keene
Housing in July 2020. No payment is due and 5%
of the balance is forgiven each year through June
2037. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization .(City of Keene, 139 Roxbury Street). 204,000

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
a county in New Harnpshire. Payments are deferred
until the note matures jn June 2029.- The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (CDBG). 640,000 64.0,000

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority to fund
ener'gy efficient improvements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHHFA). ' 140,210 140,210
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SOUTHWESTERN COMIVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT ̂continued)
2021 2020

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to a county in New Hampshire. Payments
are deferred until the note matures in December

2028. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG). 900,000 900,000

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Community
Development Finance Authority (CDFA) to fund
energy upgrades and capitai improvements.
Beginning in 2016, 10% of the note is forgiven each
year based on the rolling baiance. The mortgage
may be released after ten years in January 2026.
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDFA). 139,860 162,880

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Housing to fund energy
efficient improvements through the Authority's
Greener Homes Program. Payment is deferred for
30 years, through August 2042. The note is
secured by reai estate of the Organization
(NHHFA). 228,934 228,934

Swanzey - Non-recourse, 4.90% simple interest
mortgage note payable to the New Hampshire
Housing (HOME), due September, 2033, principai
and interest payabie at the soie discretion of the
lender from the excess cash of the borrower

determined by formula, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 287,710 289,996

Swanzey - Non-recourse mortgage note payable to
New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due September
,2043, payable in monthly installments of $1,698,
including interest at 2.35% secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 40 year
term of the mortgage. 353.561 365,474
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NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT fcontlnued)
2021 2020

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, mortgage note
payable to New Hampshire Housing, due July
2057, payable in monthly installments of $2,002
Including interest at 4.35% secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 436,974 441,872

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, zero interest mortgage
note payable to New Hampshire Housing (AHF),
due June 2034, principal and interest payable at
the sole discretion of the lender from the excess

cash of the borrower determined by formula,
secured by the Partnership's land and buildings,
subject to low income housing use restrictions for
the 30 year term of the mortgage. 237,173 237,173

Winchester - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due May 2032,
payable in monthly installments of $370, including
interest at 2.00%, secured by the Partnership's land
and buildings, subject to low income housing use
restrictions for the 30 year term of the mortgage
note (NHHFA). 43,450 46,978

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing
mortgage note payable to New Hampshire Housing
(FAF), due May 2032, payable at the sole discretion
of the lender from the excess cash of the borrower

determined by formula, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30-year
term of the mortgage note (NHHFA). 79,609 85,028

Winchester - Noh-recourse, zero interest bearing,
direct subsidy AHP loan secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to iow-
income housing restrictions under the terms of the
AHP agreement. In the event of a default under the
aforementioned agreement, the loan is due -upon
demand with interest accrued at a rate of 11.67%

for the period the funds were outstanding (Federal
Home Loan Bank). 150,000 150,000
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NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT (continued)

2021 2020

Keene Highland - Non-recourse mortgage note
payable to New Hampshire Housing (AHF). due
August 2035, payable in monthly installments of
$3,122, including interest at 2.90%, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year

term of the mortgage note (NHHFA). 434,765

Keene Highland - 30 year, zero interest, non
recourse deferred 'mortgage note payable to the
City of Keene, New Hampshire due June 2035,
payment of principal Is deferred until the due date,
secured by land and buildings (City of Keene). 91,5,000

Warwick - 30 year, zero interest, non-recourse
deferred mortgage note payable to the Town of
Winchester, New Hampshire due August 2036,
payment of principal is deferred until the due date,
secured by land and buildings (Town of
Winchester). 500.000

Total long-term debt before unamortized deferred
financing costs 11,460,204 9,049,462

Unamortized deferred financing costs (17.619) (18.281)

11,442,585 9.031,181

Less.current portion due within one year 142.174 .125.324

$8.905.857

The schedule of maturities of long term debt at May.31, 2021 is as foHpws:

Year Ending
May 31 Amount

2022 $ 142,174
2023 142,488
2024 146,073

2025 151,449

2026 157,310
Thereafter 10,720.710

Total $11.460.204
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 4 OPERATING LEASES

The Organization leases facilities, equipment and vehicles under non-cancelable
lease agreements at various financial institutions. Lease periods range from
month to month to 2025. Monthly lease payments range from $900,to $3,625.
Lease expense for the years ended May 31, 2021 and 2020 totaled $148,143
and $140,758, respectively.

Future minimum payments as of May 31, 2021 on the above leases are as
follows:

Year Ending
May 31

2022

2023

2024

2025

Total

$

Amount

69,243

1,050

720

•  120

NOTE 5 ACCRUED COMPENSATED BALANCES
At May 31, 2021 and 2020, the Organization accrued a liability for future annual
leave time that its employees had earned and vested in the amount of $144,916
and $141,970, respectively.

NOTE 6 CONTINGENCIES

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. is the 100% owner of SOS Housing, Inc.
and SOS Housing Development. Inc. SOS Housing, Inc. and SOS Housing
Development, Inc. are the general partners of eight limited partnerships formed
to develop low-income housing projects through the use of Low Income Housing
Tax Credits. Southwestern Cornmunity Services, Inc., SCS Housing, Inc. and
SCS Housing Development, Inc. have guaranteed repayment of liabilities of
various partnerships totaling approximately $11,927,000 and $13,988,000 at
May 31, 2021 and 20'20, respectively.

Partnership real estate with a cost basis of approxirnately $27,348,000 and
$35,896,000 at May 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, provides collateral on
these loans.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

•NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 6 CONTINGENCIES fcontlnued)
The Organization receives funds under various state grants and from Federal
sources. Under the terms of these .agreements, the Organization is required to
use the funds within a certain period and for purposes specified by the governing
laws and regulations. If costs were found not to have been incurred in
compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization might be required to
repay the funds.

No provisions have been made for this contingency because specific amounts, if
any, have not been determined or assessed by government audits as of May 31,
2021 and 2020.

NOTE 7 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the years ended May 31. 2021 and 2020. SOS Housing, inc. managed
nine and eleven limited partnerships, respectively. Management fees charged by
SOS Housing, Inc. totaled $228,239 .and $295,814, for the years ended May 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively. Additionally. SOS Housing, Inc. has advanced the
limited partnerships funds for cash flow purposes over several years.

The Organization has also advanced funds to a related entity for Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) sponsorship purposes.

The total amounts due and expected to be collected from the limited partnerships
and related entities totaled $55,138 and $59,067 at May 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

NOTE 8 EQUITY INVESTMENT

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies use the equity
method to account for their financial interests in the following companies:

2021 2020

Cityside Housing Associates, LP $  (9,509) $  (9,505)
Marlborough Homes, LP . (43) (27)

Payson Village Senior Housing Associates, LP (12,524) (12,514)

Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates. LP (2,247) (2,071)

Warwick Meadows Housing Associates, LP (28)

Woodcrest Drive Housing Associates, LP 180,727 222.842

Westmill Senipr Housing, LP 49 64

Keene Highland Housing Associates, LP - (269)

Alstead Senior Housing Associates, LP (18.452) (18.441)

$  138.001 $  180.051
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 8 EQUITY INVESTMENT (continued)

SOS Housing Development, Inc., is a 0.01% partner of Cityside Housing
Associates, LP, Marlborough Homes, LP, Payson Village Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Warvvick Meadows Housing Associates, LP, Woodcrest Drive
Housing Associates, LP, and Alstead Senior Housing Associates, LP, a 0.10%
partner of Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates, LP, and a 1% partner of
Westmill Senior Housing, LP during the years ended May 31, .2021 and 2020.

SOS Housing, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Winchester Senior Housing Associates,
LP, Swanzey Township Housing Associates, LP, Snow Brook Meadow Village
Housing Associates, LP, and Keene Highland Housing Associates, LP during the
years ended May 31, 2021 and 2020. ,

The remaining 99.99% ownership interest in Keene Highland Housing
Associates, LP and Warwick Meadow Housing Associates, LP were acquired by
Southwestern, Community Services, Inc. during the year ending May 31, 2021
(see Note 13), and therefore the limited partnerships are included in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended May 31, 2021.

Summarized financial information for entities accounted for under the equity
method, as of May 31. 2021 and 2020, consists of the following:

2021 2020

Total assets S 53.169 $ 56.632

Total liabilities 15,200 16,530

Capital/Member's equity 37.969 40.102

$  56.632

Income $ 3,267 $ 3,408

Expetises 4.719 4.707

Net loss £ (1.4521 £ f1.2991
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NOTE 9 RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization maintains a tax sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the internal Revenue Code. All employees who have had at
least 30 days of service to the Organization are eligible to contribute to the plan.
The Organization begins matching contributiohs after the employee has reached
one year of service. Employer contributions are at the Organization's discretion
and totaled $296,322 and $278,209 for the years ended May 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

NOTE 10 RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes:

NNECAC - Annual Conference Fund

GAPSAA/arm Fund

Transport
MS Parents Association

Total net assets with donor restrictions

2021

16.646

101,736

90,000

6.967

2020

4,614
91,725

40,000

7.933

$  215.349 $ 144.472

NOTE 11 BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The board designates a portion of the unrestricted net assets for WM Marcello
GAPS, funds. There was $12,790 and.$14,888 designated by the board at May
31. 2021 ahd 2020, respectively.

NOTE 12 FORGIVENESS OF DEBT

During the years ended May 3,1, 2021 and 2020, the Organization realized
forgiveness of debt income in connection with notes payable to Community
Development Block Grant, HUD and Community Development Finance
Authority. Forgiveness of debt income totaled $79,431 and $79,338 for the
years ended May 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The Organizatio.n recognized forgiveness of debt of $439,070 related to the
Paycheck Protection Program during the year ended May 31, 2021. See
additional detail at Note 15.
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NOTE 13 TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP INTERESTS

During the year ended May '31, 2021, Southwestern Community Services. Inc.
acquired a partnership interest 'in two low-income housing limited partnerships:
Keene Highland and Warwick. The amount paid for the partnership interest in
Keene Highland and Warwick was $.1 each, and at the time of acquisition,
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. became the genera! partner.

The following is a summary of the assets and liabilities of the partnerships at the
date of acquisition:

Keene

Highland Warwick

Date of Transfer 07/01/2020 01/01/2021

Cash

Security deposits
Cash resen/es

Property, net
Other assets

$  156,907
21.321

391,456

2,769,245
25,946

$  68.061
12,460

154,727

1,237.249

10.861

Total assets 3.364.875 1.483.358

Notes payable
Other liabilities

1,372,220
85.048

518,078

18.939

Total liabilities 1.457.268 537.017

Partners' capital 1.907.607 946,341

Partners' capital previously recorded
as an investment in related parties 269 28

Partners' capital transferred $ 1,907,876 $  946.369
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NOTE 14 LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents Southwestern Community Services, Inc. anid related
companies' financial assets as of May 31, 2021 and 2020:

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Due from related party
Notes receivable

Cash escrow and reserve funds

Total financial assets

Less amounts not available to be used

within one year:

Due from related party
Notes receivable

Reserve funds

Total amounts not available within one year

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months

2021

$  1,722,941
1,781,636

55,138

2,357

1.471.741

5.033.813

2020

$  1,400,153
1,201,132

59,067
2,357

809.897

3.472,606

(55,138)
(2.357)

f1.471.741)

n .529.236)

$  3.504.577

(59,067)
(2,357)

(809.897)

(871.321)

$ 2.601.285

The Organization has a goal to maintain unrestricted cash on hand to meet 30
days of normal operating expenditures, which are. on average, approximately
$1,559,000 and $1,215,000 at May 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The
Organization has a $250,000 line of credit available to meet cash flow needs.

NOTE 15 PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM

In April 2020, the Organization received loan proceeds in the amount of $439,070
under the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP). The PPP, is established as part of
the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES Act). If the
Organization did not meet the loan criteria, the unforgiven portion of the PPP loan is
payable over five years at an interest rate of 1 %, with a deferral of payments for the
first ten months. The Organization has used the proceeds for purposes consistent
with the PPP and the PPP loan has been forgiven in full. Therefore, forgiveness of
the loan totaling $439,070 has been recognized on the Consolidated Statement of
Activities for the year ended May 31, 2021.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 16 ECONOMIC INJURY DISASTER LOAN

During June 2020, the Organization received an Economic Injury Disaster Loan
(EIDL) from the Small Business Administration with proceeds in the amount of
$150,000. The EIDL is payable over 30 years at an interest rate of 2.75% with a
deferral of payments for one year from the date of the note. Installments, including
principal and interest, of $641 monthly begin in June 2021. The balance of
principal and interest will be payable in May 2050. The loan is secured by the
Small Business Adrhinistration.

The scheduled maturities of the EIDL as of May 31, 2021 were as follows:

Year Ending
May 31

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

Thereafter

Amount

$  3,201
3,585

3,685

3,788

3',893
131.848

£  150.000

NOTE 17 RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

NOTE 18 OTHER EVENTS

The impact of the novel coronavirus {GOVID-19) and measures to prevent its
spread are affecting the Organization's operations. The significance of the impact of
these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the Organization's
financial operational results, will be dictated by the length of time that such
disruptions continue and, in turn, vvill depend on the currently unknowable, duration
of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations that might
be irnppsed in response to the pandemic. The Organization's business could also
be impacted should the disruptions from COVID-19 lead to changes in consumer
behavior. COVID-19 also makes it more challenging for managernent to estimate
future performance of the businesses, particularly over the near to medium term.
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SOUTHWESTERN CQMIVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 19 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the staterhent of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that djd not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through October
22, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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SOUTHWgSTgRM COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOUOATED SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES ANO EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2021

REVENUES

Gov^menl contracts

Program sovice fms
Rental Income

Support
SponsorsNp
tnterast Income

Forgiveness of debt
Misnllaneous

In-Mnd contributions

Total revenues and other support

EXPENSES

Payroll
Payroll taxes
Emi^oyee benefits
Retirement

Advcrtisfrig
Bank charges
Computer cost

' Contractual
Depreciation
Oueslregistration -
DupGcaling
Insurance

Interest

Meeting and conference
Miscellaneous expense

Miscellaneous taxes

EQUipment purchases
Office expense
Postage
Professional fees

Staff development and training
Subscriptions
Teleph^
Travel

Vehido

Rent

Space costs
Direct dlent assistance

In-Mnd expenses

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL ALLOCATION

AHocafion of management and general expenses

TOTAL function;u. expenses

Education . Economic Management

Home Energy and Homeless Housing Development Other Total and 2021

Pfoorwns Nutrition Pronrams ScHvlces Prrioram* Prooram General Total

$ 4.633.049 S 3.125.051 S  5.267.961 S 4,060 S 795.997 s . S 13,828.118 S 625.379 S 14.451.487

1.028,346 . 56.851 846.971 - 776.732 2.708.902 • 2.708.902

. 90.984 1,566.630 - 127 1.857.741 • 1,657.741

55,162 9.969 242.175 . 180.072 114.194 601.572 66 601.638
, _ .

. 21.703 21.703 - 21.703

13 11 198 386 22 35 667 735 1.402

. . 56.411 23,020 - • 79.431 439.070 510.501

1.947 3,908 4.613 119,379 25 39.362 169.234 69,662 239.006
. 66414 , _ . . 65.414 -

65.414

f 5,716.519 S 5.719.193 2.560.448 i 976.118 % 052.153 S 19.130.782 $ 1.135.112

S 486,387 S  1,518,514 S  491.084 s 725.103 S 350,643 s 439,136 5 4.011.067 s 752.116 S 4.763.183

25,674 106.566 37.005 43,514 30,248 33.024 276.033 120.497 ms30

171.270 381,988 144.229 263.870 55.553 180.793 1.197.703 46.506 1.244.211

32.604 85.776 24,671 51.306 20.760 14.238 229.357 66.965 296.322
_ 3.100 386 1.295 1.638 . 6.419 133 6.552

10 . 1.130 4.109 . 11 5.260 6.766 14.026

225 28.110 12.051 7.765 16,171 - 64.322 183.132 247.454

1.007.401 12.804 42.954 61,431 680 48,737 1.174.007 50.518 1.233.525
. 26.438 117.967 603.938 . 7.620 755.963 153.192 900,155
. 2.290 . 320 543 - 3,153 8.619 11.772

69 8.160 . . . . 8.229 4.588 12.817

5.539 15.035 33.483 57.881 15.298 6,890 134.126 43.490 177.616

. 5.956 5.983 48.121 . 1.690 61.749 113.916 175.667

. . . 840 154 133 1.127 1.637 2.764

2.863 . 1.242 82.239 9,540 1,359 97.249 2.675 99.924
. . . 101.224 . . 101.224 300 101.524

386 3,330 . 6.521 . - 10237 2.808 13.045

19,064 17.479 60,872 11.834 2,568 749 112,586 49.579 162.165

300 368 126 37 348 - 1.179 31.999 33.178

1.050 •. 3.300 38.627 . - 42.977 81,034 124.011

3.406 1.327 165 2.488 614 1,165 9,185 17.341 26.526
. . . 98 . . 98 2.767 2.865

2.429 3.106 20.692 18.872 2.299 1,117 48.515 47.535 96.050

6.104 12.328 ^7.212 9,515 16.338 - 51,497 5,675 57.172

6,147 4,170 1.748 41,329 35.941 9.852 • 99.187 3.912 103.099
. 24.659 . . 21.112 » 45,771 • 46,771
. 122,478 384.093 718.703 18.731 114 1.242.119 139.966 1.382.087

3,788.549 179.702 4.126,109 12.971 24.399 3.782 8.135.512 - 8.135.512

65.414 . . - . 65.414 -
65.414

S.559,497 2.629.099 5.516.502 2.913.953 621.784 •  750.430 17291.265 1.948.672 19.939,937

602,161 284.763 597.504 315.616 67.347 81.281 1.948.672 (1.948.672) .

$ 6.161.658 S 2.913.862 S 6.114.006 s 3.229.569 $ 689.131 s 831.711 S 19.939.937 S - s 19.939.937

See Independent Auditors' Report
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SOUTWWgSTERN COMMUNITY SERVlCeS. INC. AND RgLATgP COMPANIES

CONSOUDATEO SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

FOR TNE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2020

Education Economic

Home Energy and Homeless Housing Development Other Total Managemerrt 2020

Prcxiram* Nutrition Proarams Services Services Proarams Proaram and Gei>cral Total

REVENUES

Govemn>ent contrscts S 4,518,118 S 3,020.857 $  1,759,258 9  21,581 9 797,710 9 33,809 9 10,151,333 9 468.388 9 10.619,721

Program service fee 832,454 66,804 985,951 3,496 707.147 2,595,852 9.964 2.605,816

Rental income - 97,328 1,067,704 - 1.165,032 • 1,165,032

Developer fee income . . - 1,508 - 1,508 - 1,508

Support 81.387 36,421 219,105 • 114,117 114,844 565,874 27.736 593,610

Spcneorship - 6.809 - • - 19,737 26,546 - 26.546

Interest income 12 17 1.382 2.559 35 11 4,016 5,208 9,224

Forgiveness of debt • • 56,318 23,020 - 79,338 -
79,338

MisceSaneous 2,860 3,381 21.160 n.326 19,460 - 124,187 23,926 148,113
. 167 553 .

. 167.553 - 167.553

Total revenues S 5 434 831 3.?3$,0?8 $ 2,?2i,355 S ? 179 649 9 934,818 ? 975.549 9 14.881.239 $ 535.222 9 15416461

EXPENSES

Payroll %  467,456 s 1,374,787 9  335,905 9  735,214 9 435,177 S 424,014 S 3,772,553 9 731,826 9 4,504,379

Payroll taxes 36,287 107,590 25,566 56,083 35.147 32,738 293,411 55,964 349.375

Employee benefits 135,770 412,407 121.495 271,770 65,902 193,929 1,221,273 45.011 1,266,284

Retirement 29.265 71,941 19,791 58,108 21,016 13.973 214,094 64,115 278,209

Advertising 728 3,084 83 2,632 3,999 2.100 12,626 591 13,217

BanK Charges 4 . 17 4,117 - 54 4,192 7,456 11,648

Bad debt . 45 195 . 240 4.000 4.240

Computer cost 28.124 5,538 8,120 15,541 57,323 166,243 223.566

Contractual 776.055 18,562 13,624 27.752 2.719 74.250 912,982 41,190 954,172

Depredation . 27,369 108,291 366.399 - 10,913 512,972 150,280 663.252

Dues/registrBtion • 977 - 496 466 -
1,940 9,720 11,660

OupHcatiog • 7,480 - - • - 7,480 5.684 13,164

Insurance 6,667 13,010 24,560 56,680 14,271 5.968 121,156 36.841 157,997

Interest . 7.198 7.527 36,985 . - 51,710 114,881 166,591

Meeting and conference 457 1,042 262 4,913 1,118 2.029 9,821 13,879 23.700

Miscellaneous expense 3,543 1.597 60 44,189 4,722 163 54,274 18,105 72.379

Miscellaneous taxes . . 61,942 - • 61,942 200 62,142

Equipment purchases 24,948 1,646 6.426 - - 33,020 30 33,050

Office expense 20,017 8,744 6,002 9,148 10,480 33 54.424 24.136 78,560

Postage 240 261 123 169 252 - 1,065 24,447 25,512

Professional 2.045 - 3,200 28,718 • 706 34,669 89.175 123.844

Staff development arxi training . 2,135 648 1.208 415 3,088 7.494 2,787 10,281

Subscrtpticns . - . 95 - - 95 1,601 1.896

Telephone 2,283 1.968 17,624 17.959 3,179 1,168 44,179 41.601 85,780

Travel 6,792 16,310 12.602 7.545 30,585 15 73,849 3,031 76,880

Vehlde 3,902 5,121 5.574 30,678 36.849 9,696 91,820 8.202 100,022

Rent . 25,570 . . 25,570 25.570

Space costs . 174,312 352,469 583,375 2,699 69 1,112.944 100.446 1.213,390

Direct dlenl assistance 3,637,530 208,769 999,499 12,920 33,124 418 4,892,250 - 4,892,250
. 167,553 - - 167.553 - 167.553

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

GENERAL AND MANAGEMENT ALLOCATION 5,153,989 2.687,612 2.060.655 2,433,660 737,663 775.342 13,848,921 1.761,642 15.610,563

Anocation of mar;agement ar>d general expenses 655.609 341.876 262.124 309,572 93.834 98.627 1.761,642 fl.781,642) .

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES S 5,809,598 s 3,029,468 S  2.322.779 9 2.743.232 9 831,497 9 873,969 $ 15.610.563 9 . 9 15.610.563

See Independent Auditors' Report
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SOirmWESTgRN COMMUNmr services, inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2021

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM TTTLE

U.S. Department of Agriculture

Special Supplemental Nutrition Program (or

Women, Infants, and Children (WIG)

ASSISTANCE

LISTING

NUMBER

10.557

10.558

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S NAME

Slate of NH. Department of Health & Human Services

GRANTOR'S NUMBER

010-090-52600000-102-500734

Unknown

Coronavirus Relief Fund

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURE

$  325,649
165,379

Food Distribution Cluster

Commodity Supplemental Food Program
Commodity Supplemental Food Program (Food Commodities}

10.565

10.565

State of NH. Department of Health £ Human Services
Community Action Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties

01 (M)90-52600000-102-500734

UnkrKxwn

$ '  2,400
202,600 205.200

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture $ 696,428

U.S. Deoartment of Houslno and Urban Develooment

Emergency Solutions Grant Program
COVID-19 Emergerwy Solutions Grant Program

14.231

14.231

State of NH, DHHS, Bureau of Homeless £ Housing
State of NH, DHHS, Bureau of Homeless £ Housing

05-95795-956310-717600000-102-50731

05-95-42-423010-79270000

$ 142.269
66.100 % 228.369

Supportive Housing Program
Shelter Plus Care

Continuum of Care Program

14.235

14.238

14.267

State of NH, DHHS. Bureau of Homeless £ Housing

State of NH, DHHS. Bureau of Homeless £ Housing
Slate of NH. DHHS. Bureau of Homeless £ Housir>g

05-95-95-958310-717600000-102-50731

05-95-95-958310-717600000-102-50731

05-95-95-956310-717600000-102-50731

116,879

309,035

371,328

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urt^an Development S 1.025:611

U.S. Deoartment nf Labor

WlOA Cluster

WlOA Adult Program

WlOA Dislocated Worker Formula Grants

17.258

17.278

Southern NH Services

Southern NH Services

Unknown

Unknmvn

$ 35.453

11.255 S 46.708

Total U.S. Department of Lat>or/W10A Cluster s 46.708

U.S. Deoartment of Trensoortatlnn Federal Transit Administration (FTAI

Formula Grants tor Rural Areas 20.509 State of NH. Department of Transportation 04-96-96-964010-2916 s 481,482

Transit Services Programs Cluster
Enhartced MobBlty of Seniors and Irtdividuals with Disabilities 20.513 Stale of NH. Department of Transportation 04-96-96-964010-2916 50.512

Total U.S. Department of TransportaUon Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 5 531.994

U.S. Deoartment of Treasury

Coronavirus Relief Fund

Coronawus Relief FurxJ

Coronavirus Relief Fund

21.019

21.019

21.019

State of NH. DHHS, Division of Economic £ Housing
Stability
New Hampshire Housing

New Hampshire Houslr)g

SS-2021 .BHS-03-HOUSI-04

Shelter Decompresson

Shelter Decompression

S 2,210,736
127,814

51,625

21.019 Monadnock Devetopmental Services. Inc. Long Term Care Stabilization Program 56,050 2,448,227

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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SOUTHWESTgRN COMMUNITY SERVTCES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2021

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM TRLE

U.S. Department of Treasury tcontlnucdl

Emergency Rental Assistance Program

Total U.S. Department ol Treasury

U.S. Small Business Administration

Disaster Assistance Loans

Total U.S. Small Business Administration

U.S. Deoaftment of Energy

Weathertzatlon Assistance for Low-Income Persorts

Total U.S. Department of Energy

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services

Aging Cluster
Special Programs for the Aging. Title 111. Part B.

Grants for Supportive Services and Senior Centers

Special Programs for the Agir>g, Title HI. Part B.
Grants for Supportive Services and Senior Caters

TANF Cluster

Temporary Assistance lor Needy Families

Low Irtcome Home Energy Assistance (Fuel Assistance)
Low Income Home Energy Assistance (BWP)

COVID-19 Low Income Home Energy AssistarKS

Community Services Block Grant

COVID-19 Community Services Block Giwt

Community Services Block Grant • Discretionary

ASSISTANCE

LISTING

NUMBER

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S NAME

21.023 New Hampshire Housing

59.008 Direct Award

81.042 State of NH. Office of Energy & P1annir>g

93.044 State of NH, Office of Erwrgy S Plannirtg

93.044 State of NH, OHHS. Bureau of Elderty & Aduil Services

93.558 Southem NH Services

93.568 State of NH. Office of Ertergy & P1annii>g
93.568 Slate of NH, Office of Er>ergy & Planning

Slate of NH, OHHS. Administration for Children &
93.568 Familes. Office of Community.Services

93.569 Slate of NH. DHHS, Dhr. of Family Assistance
State of NH, DHHS. Division of Economic & Housing

93.569 SlaWIity

93.570 State of NH. DHHS. Div. of Family Assistance

GRANTOR'S NUMBER

ElDLi#1272708008

01-02-<I24010-7706-074-500587

01-02-024010-7706-074-500587

05.95-48-481010-7872

Unknoi-m

01-02-02-024010-77050000-500587

01 -02-02-024010-77050000-500587

Grant #2001NHE5C3

500731

500731

FEDERAL

EXPENDfTURE

4.867

37,929 $

4,163,409

158,764

40.746

367.841

234.886

1,184,928

$ 3.633.155

s 150.000

S 150.000

s 257.105

s 257.105

42.796

138,773

4,362,919

602.727

22.652

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDmjRES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2021

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services {contlnuedl

ASSISTANCE

LISTING

NUMBER

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S NAME GRANTOR'S NUMBER

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURE

Head Start Cluster

Head Start

COVID-igHead Start

93.600

93.600

Direct Fundirtg
Direct Fundirtg

01CH011494

01HE000388

S 2,401.431

131,202 $  • 2,532.633

Total U.S. Department of Health & Human Services S 7.702.500

U.S. Oeoartment of Homeland Security

Emergency Food arKi Shelter National Board Program 97.024 Slate of NH. DHHS. Office of Human Services Unknown $ 11.008

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security
,

s 11.008

• TOTAL % 14,064,509

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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SOUTHWESTERN CQIVIMUNITY SERVICES. INC.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED IVIAY 31, 2021

N0TE1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
under programs of the federal government for the year ended May 31, 2021. The
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of
the operations of Southwestern Community Services, Inc., it is not intended to
and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows
of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PGHCIES
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTES INDIRECT COST RATE

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. has elected not to use the ten percent
de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD DONATION

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.

NOTE 5 SUBRECIPIENTS

Southwestern Community Services. Inc. had no subrecipients for the year ended
May 31, 2021.
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SOUTHWESTERN COiVllVIUNITY SERVICES. INC.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

WOLFEBORO • NORTH CONWAY

DOVER • CONCORD

STIUTHAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COWIPLIANGE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated
financial statements of Southwestern Community Services. Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as of May 31, 2021, and the related consolidated statemeri'ts of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows, for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 22, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services,
inc-.'s internarcontrol, Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Southwestern Community Services., Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, of detect and correct, misstatements on a timely ;basis. A material vyeakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in Internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to ijierit attention by those charged, with governance.
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Our corisi_deration of the iriternal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this'section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As. part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southwestern Community Services,
Inc.'s consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncpmpliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of,
consolidated financial, statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported (ir\6erGovernment Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is. an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

October 22,2021

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.

Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

t'K()F!XSION.y./VSSfK:LmON

Cm'Il'lED PUBI.IC ACCOUNI'ANTS

WOU-I'BOI^O • NORTH CONWAY

DOVT-K • CONCORD

STRATHAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended May 31, 2021.
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibilitv
Management is responsible for compliance with the federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibilitv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Southwestern Comrnunity
Services, Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States; and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
■federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s compliance.

Opinion on Each Maibr Federal Program
In our opinion. Southwestern Community Services, Inc. cpmplied, in a|l material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended May 31, 2021.
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Report on Intierhal Control Over Compliance
Management of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, yve considered
Southwestern Community Services. Inc.'s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing p.rocedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s
Internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal prograrh will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in Internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over .compliance was for the limited purpose described In the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in Internal control
over compliance that might be materiaj weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control oyer compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that were not Identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
pur testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

October 22, 2021
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2021

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the consolidated financial
statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies were
prepared in accordance with GAAP.

2. No significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the consolidated financial
statements are , reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on internal Control Over
.Financial Reporting and on Compiiance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material
weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the consolidated financial statements of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies, which would be required
to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during
the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
onJnternai Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. Mo material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

7. The programs tested as major programs were; U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services: Low-Income Home Energy Assistance, 93.568, Community Services Block Grarit,
93.569, and Head Start, 93.600; and U.S. Department of Treasury; Coronavirus Relief
Fund, 21.019, and Emergency Rental Assistance Program, 21.023;

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Southwestern Community Services, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.

SUMIVIARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2021

There were no findings or questioned costs that were required to be reported in the Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs for the year ended May 31, 2020.
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Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

Board of Directors - 2022 Composition

Cheshire County Sullivan County

Constituent

Sector

Private

Sector

Public

Sector

Ron Nason

SCS Tenant

Mary Lou Muffling
Fall Mountain Emergency Food
Shelf

Alstead Friendly Meals

Heather Cameron

Head Start Policy Council
Parent Representative

Anne Seattle

Newport Service Organization

Kevin Watterson, Chair

Clarke Companies (retired)
David Edklns, Vice-Cho/r

Town of Walpole

Dominic Perkins, Secretory
Savings Bank of Walpole

Kerry Belknap Morris, M.Ed.
Early Childhood Education
River Valley Community College

Jay Kahn
State Senator, District 10

Derek Ferland

Sullivan County Manager

Andy Bohannon
Parks, Recreation and Facilities

Director

City of Keene

Liz Emerson

Planning and Zoning
Administrator

Town of Charlestown
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Beth Daniels

Experience

Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, NH
Chief Executive Officer 07/2021 - Present
• Oversight of agency
• Working closely with the Board of Directors
•  Supervision of Senior Staff
•  Agency compliance

Chief Operating Officer 03/2016 — 07/2021
• Oversight for all general operations of the agency

•  Supervision of Program Directors
• Agency-wide initiatives
•  Grant compliance

Director ofEnergy and Employment Programs 10/2008 — 02/2015
• Oversee all daily operations for Fuel Assistance, Electric Assistance, Neighbor

Helping Neighbor, Senior Energy Assistance, Weatherization, HRRP, CORE, and
Assurance 16 as well as the employment programs Workplace Success, Work
Experience Program, and WIA.

Career Navigator, Families at Work 04/2006 — 10/2008

Second Start, Concord, NH

Career Development Specialist 11/2004 — 03/2006
•  Facilitated daily job-readiness classes and skill-building exercises
• Assisted participants with barrier resolution and the Job search process
• Maintained participant records and completed reporting requirements
•  Received ongoing training in teaching techniques and learning styles

Southwestern Communit>' Services, Inc., Keene, NH
Case Manager, Homeless Services 09/2002 - 10/2003
•  Responsible for all daily operations of housing program, rules, and regulations
•  Completed weekly and monthly progress reports
•  Coordinated house meetings, workshops, case conferences, and life skills classes

Case Manager, Welfare-to-Work 05/2000 — 09/2002
•  Provided job placement and retention services for caseload of forty (40) clients
• Gained working knowledge of Department of Health & Human Services,

Immigration & Naturalization Services, community agencies, and SCS
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Education and Training

Leadership Monadnock 2016

Grant Writing Workshop 05/2012
Cheshire County

Nonviolent Crisis Intervention 2012
Crisis Prevention Institute, Inc.

Leadership Training 2010-2011
Tad Dwyer Consulting

Criticism & Discipline Skills for Managers 11/2007
CareerTrack

How to Supervise People 11/2007
CareerTrack

Career Development Facilitator Training 09/2005
National Career Development Association
]20-hour NCDA training

Certified Workforce Development Specialist 06/2005
National Association of Workforce Development Professionals

Infection Control & Bloodborhe Pathogens 01/2003
Home Health Care

Bachelor of Arts in Human Services 05/2002
Franklin Pierce College
Graduated cum laude

Proiects/Appointments

Current Board Member, Monadnock Collaborate

Current Member, Executive Committee, Leadership Councilfor Healthy Monadnock

Current Member, Sullivan Count Public Health Advisory Council

Created Emerging Leaders Program, SCS

References Available
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Margaret Freeman

Experience

2000 - Present

Southwestern Community Services Inc.
Keene, NH

Chief Financial Officer (2014 - present)
Supervising the quality of accounting and financial reporting of SCS; a Community
Action Agency. Total fundingof $18 million; federal, state and local funding sources.
Primary responsibilities include overseeing the accounting functions, implementation
and monitoring of internal controls, reporting financial position to the Board of
Directors, preparation of the annual A-133 audit, member of agencies Senior Staff.

Fiscal Director (2000-2014)

Responsible to lead and manage the daily operations of the Fiscal Department of SCS.
Primary duties include budget preparation and analysis, financial statement preparation
and audit coordination.

1993-2000

Emile J. Legere Management Corp
Keene, NH

Accountant

Provided bookkeeping for real estate management/development corp. Managed 16
affordable housing properties. Responsible for cash management, general ledger, A/P,
A/R, financial statement prep, and audit prep. Leasing Manager of large
commercial/retail property responsible for lease management and marketing of over 30
retail spaces.

Education

Leadership New Hampshire, Graduate 2011

Plymouth State University, Plymouth, NH
M.B.A., 1999

Keene State College, Keene, NH

B.S., Management, 1991; concentration Mathematics and Computer Science
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Keith F. Thibault

Skills Summary

Effective "hands-on" manager with proven supervisory experience.
Honest, dependable and self-motivated.
Strong written and oral communicator with PC skills & experience.

-  Detail oriented, highly organized, flexible and hard-working.
Able to effectively coordinate multiple projects and tasks.

Experience

Southwestern Commiinity Services, Inc., Keene, New Hampshire
Housing Director - October, 1993 to December 1998
Director of Housing & Economic Development - January 1999 to June 2001
Development Director - July 2001 to August 2007
chief development officer - September 2007 - Present

Primarily responsible for the acquisition, development and financing of over 450 units of affordable
housing, five Head Start pre-school facilities and 100,000 square feet of commercial space in fourteen
communities in southwestern New Hampshire. Member of the agency's Senior Staff. The chief
development ofTicer position has grown to include all economic, program and philanthropic
development activities within this very dynamic Community Action Agency. The position also includes
the responsibility to represent the organization at numerous community events and on local, state and
regional boards. Highlights as Housing Director included the development of a comprehensive Property
Management component that currently maintains and manages all agency owned real estate; successful
administration of a federal HOPE 3 first time home buyer program in Sullivan County as well as being
the recipient of many awards for the development of historically significant properties.

Rural Housing Improvement, Winchendon, Massachusetts
Director of Home Ownership and Housing Counseling - June 1993 to October, 1993

This Pro^am Director position consists primarily of the administration of a $500,000 HOPE 111
Implementation grant, HOME funding for First-time Home Buyers of $250,000, coordination of a Slate
Finance Authority approved Home Buyer Education course, management of several government
property disposition programs (FDIC, RTC and Fannie Mae), several rehabilitation programs, as well as
all housing counseling activities for the component. Staff supervised include two Housing Developers,
one or more Rehabilitation Specialists, one or more Housing Counselors as well as support staff.

Assistant Director for Administration/Leased Housing - April 1998 to May 1993

Administration of a nearly two thousand household Section 8 Rental Assistance program comprised the
overall scope of this position. Primary responsibilities included the disbursement of nearly nine million
dollars annually in Housing Assistance Payments to more than eleven hundred landlords, direct day-to
day supervision of eight staff, liaison work with all other Agency components as well as accurate record
keeping per HUD regulations. Highlights included the creation of Agency Family Self-Sufficiency
Program (FSS) and serving on a statewide Project Coordinating Committee for FSS. I also represented
RHI on several committees of our State Housing Association as well as serving on several in-house
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committees focusing on employee benefits, performance evaluations and the rewriting of Agency job
descriptions to confonn to the American Disabilities Act.

Program Representative/Leased Housing - September 1986 to April 1998

Responsible for the administration and management of a two hundred-plus household caseload. Duties
included initial and annual inspections of all units, rent negotiation and general file maintenance.
Position required an unusually high degree of organizational, interpersonal and technical skills.
Thorougli knowledge of market area. Federal Housing Quality Standards and HUD Section 8 regulations
were required.

Education

University of Massachusetts at Amherst
Bachelor of Arts cum laude - 1983

Major: Economics with emphasis on Labor Economics
Minor: Political Science with emphasis on local government
Served a one-year paid internship with the University's Housing Administration, which led to
becoming the Assistant Director of the program during my junior year.
Completed a full semester academic internship serving as an assistant to the Town Manager of
Action, Massachusetts.
Took advanced courses in Economics and Latin through the Liberal Arts Honors Program

Civic and Other Activities

Former Big Brother volunteer, Keene
Current Co-Chair of Heading for Home, our Regional Housing Coalition
Current co-chair of the Southwestern Region Planning Commission's Economic Development
Advisory Committee
Former volunteer at McKerley Health Care Center, Keene
Fonner Chair of the Board of Directors for the Keene Day Care Center

Current elected Vice Chairinan of the Swanzey Zoning Board of Adjustment.
Current founding board member and Chairperson of the Monadnock Collaborative, a 501(c) (3)
organization fonned to provide regional infonnation and supported referral services.
Dedicated husband and involved father of three children ages twenty-two, twenty and eight.

References available upon request.
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Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

Key Personnel - TRANSPORTATION- BEAS

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Beth Daniels Chief Executive Officer 121,000 0 0

Margaret Freeman Chief Financial Officer 113,531 0 0

Keith Thibault Chief Development Officer 97,468 0 0
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Lori A. Shiblncttc

Commissioner

Christine I.. Santaniello

Associate Commissioner

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHfRE

DEPAJITMENTOF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Exl. 9474

Fnx: 603-27M230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

September 30, 2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Sen/ices, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend an existing contract with Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
(VC#177511), Keene, NH, for the ongoing provision of a Rapid Re-Housing, Permanent Housing
program and Supportive Services to individuals and families facing homelessness through the
Federal Continuum of Care Program, by exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the
total price limitation by $122,202 from $236,834 to $359,036 and extending the completion date
from December 31, 2021, to December 31, 2022, effective January 1, 2022. or upon Governor
and Council approval, whichever is later. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on December 18. 2019. item
#32, and the contract was most recently amended on February 17, 2021, item #8.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrance's between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase.

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

2020 102-500731"
Contracts for

Program Services
42308612 $59,392 $0 $59,392

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services
42308612 $118,417 $0 $118,417

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services
42308612 $59,025 $61,101 $120,126

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services
42308612 $0 $61,101 $61,101

Total $236,834 $122,202 $359,036

EXPLANATION

Annually, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) releases a
Continuum of Care Program competition. As part of this competition, the Department (as the

The Deporlmenl of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join commiiniiics and families
in providing opportiinilies for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

Collaborative Applicant for the Balance of State Continuum of Care) is required to Issue a Request
for Proposals based on the HUD application. HUD issues strict guidelines that specify the eligible
activities, populations to be served, expected performance outcomes, and time frames for the
competition. All project applications, new and renewal, are scored based on a Rank and Review
Policy and scoring tools that are created to match the HUD Notice of Funding Availability. Project
"applications are ranked in order of score from highest to lowest, and are funded based on this
ranking process. All project applications and individual project scores are reviewed by HUD who
informs the Continuum of Care of the funding amount for all renewal projects. Funding for new
projects is determined by the amount of tx)nus funding, if any. is made available by HUD.

The purpose of this request is for the ongoing provision of a Permanent Housing program
that delivers rental assistance, service access, supportive services and associated administrative
services to individuals and families who face chronic homelessness in order to improve the ability
of participants to live more independently.

Approximately sever) (7) households, comprised of Individuals and families in Cheshire
and Sullivan counties, will be served annually.

This program serves Individuals and families experiencing homelessness who would
otherwise likely be left in unsafe situations without permanent housing. Using the Housing First
model, the Contractor develops Stabilization and Crisis Management plans to facilitate each
participant's movement into sustained permanent .housing. Additionally, the Contractor works to
maximize each participant's ability to live more independently by providing connections to
community and mainstream senrices.

The Department will -monitor contracted services using the following reports and
information:

•  Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual
agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports. Including various demographic information, as well
as Income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

•  Data entry into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System,
which is- the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and

. housing programs.

As referenced In Exhibit C-1. Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Section 2.,
Renewal, of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its
option to renew services for one (1) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer
permanent housing options available, leaving vulnerable individuals and families in unsafe and
potentially deadly situations. Additionally, if data Is not collected as required by the contract, the
Department vAW be in non-compliance with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of
federal funding for homeless and permanent housing supportive services.

Area Served: Cheshire and Sullivan counties

Source of Federal Funds; Assistance Listing Number #14.267, FAIN #NH0074L1T002008
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

0»cuSlQn*d by:

BoeoMffEceww-..

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
CONTINUUM of CARE. RAPID RE-HOUSING PROGRAM FISCAL DETAIL

05-85-42-423010.79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF KEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS HHS: HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM
100* FwHral Fundt. 0% C«Mr»l Fof>cH. 0* Oth«r Furdi (U.S. OgjMftmgnl ol Houilftg ind Urlxn Otv»lopcn«nl. F«d«f«1 ConUnuum ofCtf* Program)

Vendor015773O
FIT/NMNH. ir

State Fiscal

Year

c.

Qass / Account

102-500731

Class Title

Contracts lor Proqram Services

Job Number

42306612

Currenl Amount

166.010.00

increasa

(Decrease)

SO. 00

Revised Amount

S66.010.00

2021 102-500731 . Contracts for Prooram Services

•Sub Total

42308612 S66.010.00

$172,020.00

SO.OO

SO.OO

$66,010.00

S172.020.00

Southweste

State Fiscal

m Community ber

Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amoott
Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731

107.500731

Contracts fa FYogram Services

Contracts fa Prooram Services

42306612

47.308612

S59.392.00

S11841700

SO.OO

SO.OO

SS9.392.00

S116.417.00

2022

2023

102-500731

107-500731.

Contracts fa FYooram Services

Contracts fa Prooram Services

47308612

42308612

S59.025.00

SO.OO

S61.101.00

$61,101.00 $61,101.00

Sub Total S236.634.00 $122,202.00

OvorellTottll S408.6S4.00| $122.202.00| 8531.0Se.OO|

Southwestern Community Ser>4c«s. Inc.
SS-2020-8HS44-PERMA-19-A02

Fiscal Oetel
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment U2

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care, Rapid Re-Housing, Permanent Housing Prograrh contract is
by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services {"State" or
"Department") and Southwestern Community Services, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on December 18, 2019 (Item #32), as amended on February 17, 2021 (Item #8). the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as ariiended and
in consideration"of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1,, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language. Section 2., Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services: and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parlies hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

December 31. 2022

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Lirnitation. to read:

$359,036

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Rapid Re-Housing, Permanent Housing Program, Section 1,
Provisions Applicable to All Services, by adding Paragraph 1.10., to read:

1.10. The Department shall annually conduct a review, onsite or remotely at the Department's
discretion, of the Contractor's participant files and at least one month of financial data to
ensure compliance with the contractual objectives and requirements.

Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2.
Paragraph 1.2.4, to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers: NH0074L1T001806 (January 1, 2020 - December 31. 2020)

■NH0074L1T0019007 (January 1. 2021 .- December 31, 2021)
NH0074L1T002008 (January 1. 2022 - December 31. 2022)

Modify Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.7, Subparagraph 1.2.7.1. to read:
1.2.7.1. January 1. 2020 - December 31, 2022, not to exceed the amount specified in Form P-

37. General Provisions. Block 1.8.. Price Limitation.

Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section, 1. Subsection 1.2.
Paragraph 1.2.8. to read;
1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program are as follows;

4.

5.

6.

Description January 1, 2020 through
December 31. 2021

January 1,2022 through
December 31.2022

Total Cumulative
Amount

1.2.8.1 Rental Assistance $189,132 $95,616 $284,748
1.2.8.2 Supportive Services $42,232 $21,116 $63,348
1.2.8.3 Administration $5,470 $5,470 $10,940
1.2.8.4 Total Program Amount: $236,834 $122,202 $359,036

1.2.8.5 25% Required Match $60,576 $30,551 $91,127

7. Add Exhibit B-2. Amendment #2. Budget, which is attached hereto and Incorporated by/afftrence
herein.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-19-A02

A-S-1.0

Soulhweslem Communily Services, Inc.

Page l of 3

Contractor Initials

Dale
9/10/2021
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective January 1, 2022, subject to Governor and
Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

.9/15/2021

Date

OMuSlQMd by:

Name-

Title: Associate Commissioner

9/10/2021

Date

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

C—OoeuSlOAM by;

Title: chief executive officer

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-19.A02

A-S-1.0

Southwestern Communliy SeArices, Inc.

Page 2 ot 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-D«euSlgn*4 by:

9/21/2021

r—D«euSlgn*4 by:
J. (jx/i^bfLjur /WsLiL

:—Lpcw^m'p^wpiim Mdisiidn
Date Name;

Title; Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name;
Title;

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-19-A02 Soulhweslem Community Services. Inc.

• A-S-1.0 Page 3 of 3
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TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHSSHARE

Activity Mama MONTHLY BUDGET MONTHLY Buocrr YTO MONTHLY

Renul Asabtane* 47M

Supponiv* SprvicM
AdmMtntion

25% RaquirM MaiO

TOTAL HUO FUNDS/BALANCE

"  SPY23 ■ 7/1/22-12/3J/22

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity N«me BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY

Rental Assistane*

Supponh* Sanicea

A^iministntlan

25%R«aui'ad Maicn IS.27S

TOTAL HUO FUNDS/BALANCE

TOTAL - 1/1/22-12/31/22

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTD

Rental AaaJatanca

SuoochK* Semiees

AfllTtiftilBalion

29% RaqiAed Uaich

TOTAL HUD FUNOSAALANCE

Total WO Hatch i 122.203

EahlWl 0-2, Amendment 12. Budtei

Sevttm-ntem CommttnkY Sendees, inc. RaoM R«-Hovslng

SS-2020-6HSO4-P»A4A-t0-A02

Contractor Inltijb

Pacetoll
9/te/202l
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIViSION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLCASAraSTReCT, CONCORD, NH 0)301
603-271>9474 1 •80O4S2-334S £i t. 9474

Fei: 60>27M130 TDD Acceta: 140(^73^2964 wwwulMis.ah.gov

February 1, 2021

His ExceOency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to emend an existing Sole Source contract with the vendor, listed in bold
below, for the ongoing provision of Permanent Housing programs and Supporliva Services to
individuals and families facing homelessness through the Federal Continuum of Care Program,
•by decreasing the total price limitatK)n by-$762-ffom-$4Q9,-686-to^S408:654-with-no Ghan9e to the-
contract completion date of December 31. 2021 effective upon Governor and Council approval.
100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Govemor and Council on December 18. 2019, item
#32.

Vendor

Name

Vendor

Code

Area Served Curront

Amount

Increase

fDecreaee)
Revised

Amount

G&C

Approval

FIT/NHNH

,  Inc..
Manchester.

NH

157730 statewide $172,020 50 $172,020 0:12/18/19,
Item 032

Southwostern

Community
Services,

(nc.. Kocno,
NH

.177511

Cheshire &

Sullivan

Counties

$237,566 ($732) $236,834
0: 12/18/19,
Item 032

Total: S409,686 ($732) $408,654.

Funds are available In the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds In the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation ami encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

SEE ATTACHED FISCAL DETAILS

EXPLANATION

This request Is Sole Source because the coritracts were originally approved as sole
source and MOP. 150 requires any subsequent amendments to be labelled as sole source.

77i« Dtportmtnl of Htcllh and Human Struiut' Miuian it to join eommunititi and fomiliu
in providingopportunitittforoitiuntteoehitvohtailh and indtptruUnct.
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Hie £xceDency. Oovemor Chrtstopher T. Sununu
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Pago 2 of 2

The purpose of this request is to adjust the price limitation to reflect the amount of funding
granted by the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to provide a Permanent
Housing program that delivers rental and leasing assistartce, service eccess. supportive services
and associated edmtnistratrve services to Individuals and families who face chronic homeiessness
in order to improve the ability of partidpante to live more independently.

This program serves Individuals and families experiencing homeiessness who viwuld
otherwise likely be left in unsafe s'ltuatiohs without permanent housing. Approximately seven (7)
households experiencing homeiessness in Cheshire and Sullivan counties will be served from
January 1. 2021 to Oeoember 31. 2021.

Using the Housing First model, vendors develop StatTillzation and Crisis Management
plans end facilitate each participant's movement into 6ustair>ed permanent housing. Additionally,
vendors v^rtc to maximize each partldpant's sbility to live more independently by providlrtg
connections to community and mainstream services.

The Departrhenl will monitor contracted services using the following tools:

•  Annual reviews relating to compliance with adminlstratfve rules and contractual
agreements.

t_Semi=annual-statisticaLoBparls.-indudiDftj^rioua damQgcaotucJQfoiTnatiotLand-
income and expense reports, to Indude match doQars.

• A!) vendors funded through these contracts will report through the timely and
accurate entry of data into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information
System. This will be the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shatter
and.housing programs-.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language. Section 2..
Renewal, of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Coundl approval. The Department is not exerdslng
its option to renew at this time.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Department may be liable
for funding that has not been made avallatrle for services described in the contract.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA #14.267, FAIN #NH0074L1T001907.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds vrill not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

\M
.ori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

CONTINUUM of CARE, RAPID RE-HOUSING PROGRAM FINANCIAL DETAIL

OS-9S-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOOAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS.

HHS: HUMAN SERVICESi HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM
100% Foderal Fufxls, 0% Cenerol Fundi, 0% Oiher Funda (U.S. Dopsnmeni of Houaing end Urban Oevolopmenl, Federal Continuum of Cera Progrem)

FIT/NHNH, Inc. Vendor 0157730

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number ■ Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

'  2020 102-500731 Contracts lor Program Services 42308612 $86,010.00 $0.00 $86,010.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts tor Program Services 42308612 $86.0)0.00 $0.00 $86,010.00

Sub Total $172,020.00 $0.00 $172,020.00

Vendor 0177511

Stale Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

incroese

(Decrease)'
Revised Arnount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 42308612 $59,392 $0.00 $59,392.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Services . 42308612 $118,783 -$366.00 $118,417.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts tor Prooram Services 42308612 $59,391 •  -$366.00 $59,025.00

Sub Total $237,566.00 •$732.00 $236,884.00

Overall TotBl| $409.586,001 -$732.00} $408.854.00

Soutltwesiern Communiiy Services. Inc.
SS-2020-8H5-04-PERMA-19-A01

FInenelel Oeiell Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care, Rapid Re-Housing, Permanent Housing Program contract is
by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or
"Department") and Southwestern Community Services. Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on December 18.2019 (Item #32), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specined in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 10. the Contract may be amended
upon wrlnen agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to decrease the price limitation to support continued delivery of these
services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$236,834.

2. Modify Exhibit B-1, Budget by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B-1 Amendment #1. Budget,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

Southwestern Community Services. Inc. , Contractor Initials

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-19-A01 Page 1014 Dale

—M

\/i4/2021
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VnialslSouthweslorn Communliy Scfvices. Inc. Contractof Inilialsl
_ . 1714/2021

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-19-A01 Page2of4 Date_
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AH terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.-
This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

•i/2i/2on

Date

G'DPCvSlgnMVir
N^^^h?t^Trte santanSello
Title: Director

Southwestern Community Services. Inc.

1/14/2021

Date

•O*(v}io<i*d by;

s Title: CEO

Soulhwestem Commoniiy Services, Inc. Amendment 1

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-19-A01 Pago 3 oI 4



DocuSign Envelope ID; EF6BOFB2-0258-4215-B3C8-481BE66658F6

DocuStgn Envelope 10:70969206-650E-4381-9D57-109A8899F9C2

OocuSigA Enwetope ID: 4B38332B-D322-409A.92FB-74EC09A50074

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

1/31/2021 I
^ P^nos

Title; Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
• the Slate of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

/

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date ' Name:
)  Title:

Southwestern Community Services, inc. AmerxJo^ent

SS-2020-BHS-64-PERMA-1&-A01 Page 4 of 4
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC A HOUSING STABILITY

119 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH MJOI
«)3-27l.9474 ).80^8S2OHS Eit 9474

Fkx: MJ-ITMUO TODAcceii: l-S00*735-2964 www.dhbt.oh.sov

November 22. 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and Housing
Stability, to enter into sole source agreements with the vendors listed below to provide Permanent
Housing programs and Supportive Services to individuals and families facing homelessness through the
Federal Continuum of Care Program in an amount not to exceed $409,586. effective January.1. 2020, or
upon Governor and Executive Council approval, whichever is later, through the completion dates
indicated in the (able below. 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name Vendor# Location
Effective

Date

Completion
Date

Total

Amount

FIT/NHNH, Inc. 157730-B001 Statewide 01/01/20 12/31/20 $172,020

Southwestern Community
Services. Inc.

177511-R06i
Cheshire &
' Sullivan
Counties

01/01/20 12/31/21
$237,666

-

,

Total $409,586

Funds are available in the following accPunt for Slate Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in Slate Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued appropriation of
•funds in the future operating budgets, vrith authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and
adjust encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

SEE ATTACHED FISCAL DETAILS

EXPLANATION

These requests ere sole aoufce because federal regulations require the Department to idenlrfy
vendors with whom the Department will contract during the annual, federal Continuum of Care Program
renewal application process, prior to the grant award being issued. The U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD) reviews the applications and subsequently , awards funding based on its
criteria. The application process and timing of grant terms do not align with state or. federal fiscal years.
The start date of a grant Is based on the month in which each grant's original federal agreement was
issued. This results in Continuum of Care Program grant start dates, and subsequent renewal approval
requests, occurring in various months throughout the year.

The purpose of these requests is to provide Permanent Housing programs that deliver rental and
leasing assistance, service access, supportive services and associated administrative services to
Individauls and families who face chronic homelessness in order to improve the ability of participants to
live more independently.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

Collectively, these vendors will provide permanent housing and supportive services to a minimum
of twenty-six (26) participants from January 1. 2020 through December 31. 2021.

The attached agreements represent two (2) of thirty (30) total annual agreements, many of which
have renewal dates dispersed throughout the calendar year. The thirty (30) agreements are with vendors
who are located throughout the stale to ensure ongoing, statewide delivery of housing services through
New Hampshire's Continuum of Care Program.

Using the Housing First model and (he development of Stabilization end Crisis Management
plans, the vendors will faciiiteie partidpants' movement into sustained pormaneni housing while providing

. connections with community services to maximize the parllcipent's ability to live more.independently.

HUD established the Continuum of Care concept to support communities in their efforts to
address (he problems of housing instability and homelessne.ss in a coordinated, comprehensive, and
strategic fashion. The Continuum of Care serves three main purposes;

(1) A strategic planning process for addressing homelessness in the community.

(2) A process to engage broad-based, comrhunity-wide involvement In addressing homelessness
on a year-round basis.

(3) An opportunity for communities to submit an application to the U.S. Department of Houslrtg
and Urban Develppmeni for resources targeting housing and support services for individuals
and families who face homelessness.

The.8ureau ensures contract compliance and vendor performance in the following ways:

(1) Annual compliance reviews are performed and include the ^llection of data relating (o
compliance with administrative rules and contractual,agreements. '

(2) Statistical reports are submilted by the vendor on a semi-annual basis which include various
dernographic information and income and expense reports, including match dollars.

(3) Each vendor Is required to maintain timely and accurate data entry in the New Hampshire
Homeless Management Information System, which is the pnmary reporting tool for outcomes
end activities of shelter end housing programs funded through these contracts.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of the attached two (2) year agreement with Southwestern
Community Services, Inc.. the parties have the option to extend contract services for up to two (2)
additional years, contingent upon'satisfactory delivery of services, available fu'ndii>g. agreement of the
parlies and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

As evident in Exhibit C-1 of (he proposed agreement with FIT/NHNH. Inc., (here are no options'
for contract renewal.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize these requests, supportive services for
Individuals and families who face homelessness in the areas served by the vendors may not be available
In their communities, additionally there may t^e an increase in demarKf for services placed upon each
region's local welfare authorities. H may also result In individuals and families becortiing homeless.

Area served: Statewide, a minimum of twenty-six (26) individuals and/or families will be served
collectively between the two proposed agreemanls.
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Mis Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

Source of funds: 100% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. Office of Community Planning and Development. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
Number (CFDA) #14.267. FAIN #s: NH008tLlT001805 and NH0074L1T001806.

In the event (hat the Federal funds become no longer available. General funds will not be
requested to support these programs.

Respectfully subminod.

jhiiyA. MJe^y A. Meyers
Commissioner

Th« Ocpori/ittnt e/Health and Human Servieet'Miuion U ic/oin communiiiu end femili'et
in itni/idingeppertnniiicM forodten* to eeftiene heoUh and independence.
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FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

OS-9S-42-423010-7027 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS. HHS:
HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS HOUSING. HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

FrrmKNH, Inc. (Vendor fl1977U-B001)

State FlacalYiar CUaa/Account Clasa TlUa JoO Numbar AmourtI

2020 102-500731 Contacts lor prognm SeMeas TBO $06,010.00

2021 • 102-900731 Contracts tor Program Servtcas 780 $66,010.00

' Sub-Total $172,020.00

Southweitam Community Servtcas. inc. (Vandor 177911-R001)
(Rapid Re>Hovslno. Ptrrnanam Hbusinfl ProBratn)

8UU Fiacal Year Claai/Account ■ Class Titia Job Numbar Amount

2020 .  102-500731 Contracts tor Program SeMccs TBO $59,392.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts tor Program Sarvices 180 $116,763.00

2022 102-500731 ;;.^C»t^i^.tor Program Sarvlcas TBO $99,391.00

Sub-Total 9237.5M.C0

Grand Total $409,966.00

Continuum ol Care Permanenl Housing
SS-2020-8HS-04.PERMA Page ̂  ol i
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FORM NUMBER P-37(venion S/8/18)
Subject; CQntinilum of Cure. Rapid Re-Houtiny Pcmianem HoiKinn Progfam. S$-2Q2Q-aHS^4.PERMA.l9

Notice: TMs agreement aad all of iu artachmeni) ihall become public upon submiision to Governor and
Executive Council Tor approval. Any inrormatlon thai Is private, conridemlBl or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing (he contract.

AGREEMENT

.The Slate of New Hampshire and the Conuactor hereby mutually agree at follows: '

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

I.I State Agency Nantc
NH Depanmeni of Healih and Human Servicei

1.2 Stale Agency Address
129 PIcuani Sircci

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Southwestern Community Services, inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

63 Community Way
P.O. Box 603

Keene, NH 034] 1-0603

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)352.7512

1.6 Account Number

05-95.42-423010-7927-

102-500731

1.7 Completion Date

Oecembcr 31', 2021

1.8 Price Limitation

S237.566

1.9 Contracting OITicer for State Agency
Nathan 0. White. Oirector

1.10 Stele Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

i.M Coi)UU(Or Signature

CjAAr^. ,
1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

1.13 Acknpwledgemeni: State of .County of Q

On ) 1 ■ n ' , before the undersigned officer, personoll
proven to be (he person whose name is signed in block 1. I I. and oc
indicated In block 1.12.

ntShire

y oppeartd ihe peraon identified in block'l.l2, or satisfaciorily
knowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity

I.I3.I Signature of Notary Pubfic'^Justice of (he Pmcc

fSeall .Cti A. TOMLIN. >13600 Of (h« Pmoo
1.13.2 Name end 1\tl^ of Notary or lusiicc of the Peace Corrvnbaloo Apru 5,2022 "

I.M State Agency.Sjgnaiure 1.15 Name and Title of State Agcr^y Signatory

ih/PrJvr fYu'
1.16 Approvallby (Ti^N.ri. Oepa/tment of Adminlsdaiioif. Division of Personnel (if oppHcabtf) '

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Anomey Genera) (Form, SubstatKe and Execution) (i/oppiicoble)

CATm-ii^ piijfs.

1.18 Appro(;gl^y the Governor and Executive Council Of eppfkoble)

By: On:

n
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2. EMPLOYMENT OFCONTRaCTOR/SERVICESTO
BE PERFORMED. The Siate ofNew H&mpshire, eciing
ihrough the sgency ideniificd in block I. I ("Sute"), cngoges •
contrtcior idcrilified In block 1.3 {"Conirtcio/") to pcrfbnn.
end the Coni/eclor shell perfonri. the work or sole of goods, or
both, ideniiricd end more pa/ticulerly described in (he oneched
EXHIBIT A which is incorponued herein by reference
("Servrcei").

y EFFECTIVE date/completion OF SERVICES.
3.1 Norwiihttending eny provision of this Agreement to the
connry. end subject to the epprovtl of the Governor end
Executive Council of the Sute of New Hempshirc, if
>pplicabl«, ihii Agreem«ni, and alt obligaiions of (he panics
hertundcr. shell bceome effective on the dote the Governor
end Executive Council approve this Agreement es indicated in
block I.It, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agroemcm shall become effective on the dale the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
,1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Conmctor commences the Services priortothe
Effective Date, ell Services performed by the Conlreciof prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed ot (he sole risk of the
Conimctor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effeetlve, the State shall have no liabiMiy lo the
Contractor, including without limiiotion, any obligatiort to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contmctor must complete ail Services by (he Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF agreement.
Norwithsianding any provision of (his Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hercunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of paymenu hercunder, arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation -
of funds, and in no event shall (he State be liable for any
paymenu hercunder in excess of such available appmpriaied
funds, in the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, (he State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have, the right to termintie this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The Slate
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other ttccount
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account am reduced or unavailable.

5. contract PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

3.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT 8 which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete rcimburiemeni to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only artd (he complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liabiliry to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset firom any emounu
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounu required or permitted by N.H. RSA
tO:7 through RSA 80;7-c or any other provision of law.
3.4 Noiwithsuinding ony provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of ell payments auihonxed, or actually
made hercunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
l.S.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with ihc pcrformence of the ScrvScei, the
Contractor shell comply with ell staimes, laws, regutationi.
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opponuniry
laws. This may include the requirement to utilite auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication .
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
Information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discnmiitaic against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religiott, creed, age. sex.
handicap, sexual orientation, or ixational origin and will take
afftrmetive action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 I r this Agreement is funded in any pan by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all (he
provisions of Executive Order No. I l246("Equ8l ..
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of (he United Slates Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Pan 60), and with any rules, reguletioni and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States iuue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor funher agrees to
pcmiii the Suie or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the coverianis. terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shell at its own expense provide ell
personnel necessa/y to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise aulhoriied to do so under all applicable
taws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, er>d for-o period of six (6) montM aflcr the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shell not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined cfTon to
perform (he Services to hire, any person who is a Stale
employee or ofTiciol, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

or4
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Agreemem. TMs proviiioo »hell »urviv« wrminition of thij
Agreemeni.
7.3 The Coninciing Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, sholl be the Stale's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning (he interpretation of (his Agreement,
the Contracting Orficer's decision shall be find for the Stitc.

6. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
1.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event ofdefaull hereunder
("Event of Oefouli"):
1.1.1 failure le perform the Service* tatilfaeiorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; end/or
8.) .3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or.more, or all. of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a wminen notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it 10 be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the dale of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, icrminde this Agreement, effective two
(2) days aflcr giving the Contractor notice ofterminotion;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a wrinen notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all psymenis to be made under this
Agreement and ordering (hat the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Comracior during the
period ftam the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shtll never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages (he State suffen by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
fcmediei ai'ltw or in equity, or both.

9. OATA/ACCESS/CONFIDEhnriALITV/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used In (his Agreement, (he word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of. or acquired or developed by reason of, (his
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reporu,
ntes, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reptrxlwciions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfrnished.
9.2 All data and anypropcrty which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpoK
under this Agrtement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be relumed to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the Slate.

Page

10. TERMINATION. In the event of on early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the eompleiion of (he
Services, the Ccntracior shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fiflcen (IS) days after the date of
termination, a reportC'Tcrminaiion Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and Inciudingthe date of terminal ion. The form, subject
matter, content, end number of copies of (he Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the anachcd EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

ihe performance of (hi* Agrtement the Contractor is ir> ell'
respects an independent contractor, end Is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
offtcera. employees, agents or members shell have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by (he Stetc to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Ccntracior shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the Stale. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the Slate.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its ofTiccra and
employees, from and against any and all losses lufTcrtd by the
State, its officen and employees, and any and all eiaims,
liabiiiiies or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of(or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding Ihe foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the Slate. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive (he lerminaiion of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor sholl, pt its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, (he following
insurance;

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against ell
claims of b^ily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than S1,000,000per occurrence end S2,(X)0,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause ofloss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph'9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of (he whole replacement value of (he property.
14.2 The policies described in subporegraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements apprtived for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Dcpartmcni pf
InsurarKe, and issued by insurers licensed in (he State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contnctor shall furnish lo the Conirecting OfTicer
ideniified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certiriC8(e(s)
ofinsurance for all insurence required under this Agreemeni.
Cootnicior shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identiHed in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certiricaie(s) of
insurence for all rer>ewal(s) ofinsurence required under this
Agreement no later ih'an ihir^ (30) days prior to the expiration
dale of each of the Insurance policies. The ctrsificatefs) of
insurance end any renewals thereof shall be attached and are'
incorporated herein by reference. Each ceriiricaie{s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Orficer identified in block 1.9. or his
or her successor, no less itun thiny (30) days prior wrinen
rwtlce of cancellation or medificaiion of the policx-

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
15.) By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
Of exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 - A
("Worktrt' Comptnsotion ").
/5.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 *A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any lubconiracior or assignee lo secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contnciing Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
lOr her successor, proof of Workers' Comperuailon in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable renewsl(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein ̂  rrference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensiiion
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Controcior, or
any subconirocior or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreemcni.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Suie to
enforce any provisions hereof aflet any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to (hat Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failureto enforce uy Event of Default shall be deemed a
woiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the ■
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part ofthe Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
lime of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

16. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the partiu hereto end only after epprovp) of such
amcndmeni, waiver or discharge by the Covemor and
Executive Council ofthe State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State taw, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF agreement AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of (he State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefii of the parties and (heir respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the panics to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The ponies hereto do not intend (o

bcrwfit any third parties and this Agreement ihall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings (hroughoui (he Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in (he interpretation, consuucilon or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SFECIAt FROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the enached EXHIBIT C ore incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of (he provisions of
this Agreement arc held by a court ofcompeieni jurisdiction to
be conirory to any state or federal law, (he remaining
provlsiorts of this Agretmeni will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Rapid Re-Housing, Permanent Housing Program
V

1. PfovlBlona Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they will
provided to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their
programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date; submined to:

NHOHHS
Bureau of Housing Supports
ICS Pleasant Street .

Concord, NH 03301

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General
Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the services described herein, the
State, through (he Bureau of Housing Supports (BHS). has the right to modify service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, (he Department has identified the Contractor as a
subreciplent, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.300.

1.4. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR 578.i03(b). US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD Office of the Inspector
General, and the Comptroller-General of the United States, or .ainy of their authorized
representatives, must have the right of access to all t>ookS; documents, papers, or other records
of the Contractor that are peilinent to the Continuum'of Care (CoC) grant, In order to make
audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts. These rights of access are not limited to the
required retention period, but last as long as the records are retained.

1.5. The Contractor shall adhere to federal and state rmanclal and confidentiality laws, and comply
with the program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments thereto, as detailed

•  in the applicable Notice of Funding Available (NOPA) CoC Project Application approved by HUD.

1.6. The Contractor shall provide services according to HUD regulations oullined in Public Law 102-
550 and 24 CFR 578 and other written, appropriate HUD policies end directives. •

1.7. The Contractor shall ensure all programs are licensed to provide client level date into the New
Hampshire Hornetess Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs shall follow NH
HMIS policy, Including specific information required for data entry, accuracy of data antered, and
time required for data entry. Refer to Exhibit K for information security r^uirements and Exhibit
I for privacy and security requirements for protected health information.

1.6. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer all questions related to this contract from
representatives of the Stale or Federal agencies who may conduct a periodic review of
performance or an inspection of records.

1.6. The Contractor shall support the primary goal of this program, which is to facilitate the movement
of homeless end chronically homeless individuals and families .to permanent housing and
maximum self-sufficiency.

2. Scooe of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall implement a Coordinated Entry System for a!) projects funded by the CoC
Program, Emergency Solutions Grants Program, and Housing Opportunities for Persons with
AIDS Program, in accordance with CoC interim rule, 24 CFR 576.

SowO>MtI«mCom(nuntt]rS«iv1cM. lnc.,ARH EidVMlA ConfrveSMInfill
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New HampdMre Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

2.2. • The Contraciof shall provide a Rapid Ro-Houslng, Permaneni Housing program that is targeted
to serve seven (7) homeless, eligible households in Cheshire and Sullivan counties per year with
8 potential to serve fourteen (14) homeless, eligible households over the two (2) year contract
period, which includes but is not limited to;

2.2.1. Utilizing the Housing First model, ensuring:

2.2.1.1. Barriers to entering housing ere not Imposed beyond those required by
regulation or statute; end

2.2.1.2. Participation will only terminate for the most severe reasons, once available
options have been exhausted to help a participant maintain housing; and

2.2.2. Developing of a slabilizalion plan and crisis management plan with the participani at
intake and. a1 a minimum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Services is required, with the ultimate goal being assistance to the participant In obtaining
the skills necessary to live In the community indeper^denlty.

2.3. The Contractor shall establish and maintain standard operating procedures to ensure CoC
program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR' 578 and shall establish and maintain
sufficient records to enable HUD and BHS to determine Contractor requirement compliance,
including:

2.3.1. Continuum of Care Records: The Contraclor shall maintain the following documentation
related to establishing and operating a CoC:

2.3.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable
evidence of homeless status in accordance with 24 CFR 576.S00(b);

2.3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Hometessness Status: The Contractor shall maintain
records thai establish "at risk of homelessness' status of each Individual or
family who receives CoC homelessness prevention assistance, as identified in
24 CFR 576.500(c); and

2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall
maintain documentation of each program participant who moved to a different
CoC due to imminent threat of further domestic violence, dating violence, sexual
assault, or stalking, as defined in 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor shall
retain documentation that includes, but is not limited to:

2.3.1.3.1 The original incidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual
assault, or stalking, only if (he oHginal violence is not already
documented in the program participant's case file. This may be
written observation of the housirtg or service provider; a letter or other
documentation from a victim service provider, social worker, legal
assistance provider, pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or
other professional from whom the victim has sought assistance;
medical or dental records; court records or law enforcement records;
or written certification by the program participant to whom the
violence occurred or by the head of household: and

SouTiwtiumComTMAirr S«ivkii. Inc.. AAH Cd4bliA Cootrtcw InllUtt.
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2.3.1.3.2 The reasonable belief of Imminent threat of further domestic violence,
dating violence, or sexual assault or stalking, which would include
threats from a third-party, such as a friend or family member of the
perpetrator of (he violence. This may be written observation by the
housing or service provider; a letter or other documentation from a
victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider.-
pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or other professional from
whom the victim has sought assistance: current restraining order;
recent court order or other court records; law enforcement report or
records; communication records from the perpetrator of the violence
or family members or friends of the perpetrator of the violence,
Including emails, voicemails, text messages, end social media posts:
or a written certificetion by the program participant to wt>om the
violence occurred or the head of household.

2.3.1.4. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who receives housing
assistance wttere rent or an occupancy charge is paid by the program
participant, the Contractor shall keep the following documentation of annual
income:

2.3.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUO and completed by the
Contractor:

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents, which may include the most recent wage
statement, unemployment compensation statement, public benefits
statement, and bank statements for the assets held by the program
participant and income received before (he date of (he evaluation; and

2.3.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents are unobtainable, a written
' statement by a relevant third party, which may include ah employer
or a government benefits administrator, or the written certification by
the Contractor's intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of the income the program participant received over the most
recent period; or

2.3.1.4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party verification are
unobtainable, the written certification by the program participant of
the amount of income that the program participant is reasonably
expected to receive over the three (3) month period following the
evaluation.

2.3.1.5. Program Participant Records. In addition to evidence of hcmclessnoss status
or at-risk-of-homelessness status, as applicable, the Contractor shall keep
records for each program participant that document:

2.3.1.5.1. The services and assistance provided to that program participant,
including evidence that the Contractor conducted an annual
assessment of services for those program participants that remain In
the program for more than a year and adjusted the service package
accordingly, and Including case management services as provided in
24 CFR 578.37(a)(1)(ii)(F); and

2.3.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of assistance,
requirement in 24 CFR 578.91.
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2.3.1.6. Standards. The Conlractor shall retain documentation of compliance
with the housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b). including inspection reports.

2.3.1.7. Services Provided. The Contractor shall document the types of supportive
services provided under the Contractor's program end the amounts spent on
those services. The Contractor shall keep documeniaiion that the records were
reviewed at least annually and that the service package offered to program
participants was adjusted as necessary.

2.'4. Tho Contractor shall maintain records that document compliance with:

2.4.1. The Ofoanltationai conflicl-of^lnlerest requirements In 2^ CFR 676.95(c):

2.4.2. The Continuum of Care Board conflict-of-intefest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(b); and

2.4.3. The Other Conflicts requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(d).

2.5. The Contractor shall develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal confllcl-of-interest
policy that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR 578.95, including records supporting eny
exceptions to the persona) conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contractor shall comply and retain documentation of compliance with:

2.6.1. The Homeless Participation requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.75(g):

•2.6.2. The Faith-based Aclivtties requirements In accordance with 24 CFR 578.87(b):

2.6.3. Affifmativetv Furtherino Fair Housing bv maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach,
and other malerlats used is inform eligible persons pf the program in accordance with 24
CFR 578.93(c):

2.6.4. Other Federal Requirements in 24 CFR 578.99. as applicable;

2.6.5. Other Records Specified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified
by HUD; and

2.6.6. Procuremer^l Requirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

2.7. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting Specific confidentialiry and security requirements for HMIS
data (76 FR 76917). the Contractor shall develop end implement written procedures to ensure:

2.7.1. All records conteining protected idenlttying information of any individual or famity who
applies for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be kept secure and
confKfeniial:

2.7.2. The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Conlinuum of Care
funds .ere not to be made public, except with written authorization of the person
responsible for the operation of the project; and

2.7.3. The address or location of eny housing of a program participant will not be made public,
except es provided under e preexisting privacy policy of the recipient or subrecipient and
consistent with State and local laws regarding privacy and obligalions of conndentlality.

2.8. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made
by microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Conlinuum of Cere funds
are retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date and receipt of final payment
by the Contractor unless records are othenvise required to be maintained for a period in excess
of Ihe five (5) year period according to state or federal law or regulation. /Ojri
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y Program Reportino ReQulrementa

3.1. The Contrdctor shall submit the following reports:

3.1.1. Annual Performance Reoorl fAPRl: Within thirty (30) days after the Contract Completion
Date, an APR shall be submitted to 6HS that summarizes the aggregate results of the
Project Activities, showing in particular how the Contractor is carrying out the project in
the manner proposed in the application submined to HUD for the relevant fiscal year
NOFA. The APR shai) be in the form required or specified by the State, and submitted to
the oddrecs listed in eection 1.1. Exhibit A: and

3.1.2. Other Reports as requested bv the State In comoliance with NH HMIS oclicv.

4. Contract Admlnlatratlon

4. t. The Contractor shQl) have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings requested
by 8HS, including training in data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal
tews. To the extent possible. 6HS shall notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings
' five (5) working days In advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the change.

6. Perfofmance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in the applicable HUO Project
Application #SF-424.

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as detailed in all applicable
HUD regulations including, but not limited to the following:

5.1.1.1. httDs://www.hudexchanfle.info/DfOQfams/coc/svstem-perfonmance-

measures/fauidance:

5.1.1.2. 24 CFR 578: Continuum of Care Program; and

5.1.1.3. Public Law 102-550.

5.1.2. Tfie Contractor shall be accountable to ail,.performance measures as detailed In the
Annual Performance Report Section 3. Exhibit A.'

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS. or designee, may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement.

6. Deliverables

6.1. The Contractor shall implement and participdte in the Coordinated Entry System, as detailed in
Section 2 Scope of Work. Subsection 2.1., above. In accordance with the CoC Program interim
rule, 24 CFR Part 578 and as amended.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide a permanent housing program as outlined in Seclion 2 Scope of
Work, Subsection 2.2., above, and other written HUD policies and directives as appropriate.

6.3. The Contractor shall provide accurate and timely reporting as detailed in Section 3., Prograrri
Reporting Requirements, above.

6.4. The Contractor shall be subject to ell performance measures as outlined in Section 5.
Performance treasures, above.
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METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

1. Rapid Re.HoualnQ. Permanent Housing Proorem Funding

1.1. The State shall pay the Contractor en amount not to exceed the Form P-37. Block 1.8, Price
Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

1.2. This Agreement is funded with general funds and/or federal funds made available under the
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA). as follows:

1.2.1. NH General Fund: 0%

1.2.2. Federal Funds:. 100%

1.2.3. CFDAff: 14.267

1.2.4. FAIN#: . NH0074L1T001B06

1.2.6. Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD)

1.2.6. Program Title; Continuum of Cere, Rapid Re-Housing, Permanent Housing Program

1.2.7. Total Amount Continuum of Care;

1.2.7.1. January 1. 2020-December 31.202t: not to exceed $237,566

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program;

1.2.8.1. Administrative Expenses; $5,470

1.2.8.2. Supportive Services: $42,232

1.2.6.3. Rental Assistance: $189 864

1.2.8.4. Total program amount: $237,566

1.2.8.6. Vendor Match (25%) $60,759 ■

1.3. The Contraclor shall provide the services in Exhibit A. Scope of Service in comptiance with
funding requirements. Failure, to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded
Contractor's current and/or future funding.

2. Financial Reports

2.1. As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in accordance
with 2 CFR part 200.

2.1.2. One (1) copy of the audited financial report within thirty (30) days.of the completion of
said report to the State at the following address:

NH OHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
105 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

2.2. Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with
procedures, requirements, and principles specified In 2 CFR part 200.

SouffMtMn Cownunhv S«r>^. Inc.. RAH EjAWI B Ccnlr*ctor
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2.3. If the Contractor Is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR pert 200. the Contractor shall
submit one (1) copy of an audited financial report to the Department utilizing the guidelines set
forth by the Comptroller General of the United States in 'Standards for Audit of Governmental
Organizations, Program Activities, end Functions.' within ninety (90) days after contract
completion date.

3. Prolect Costa: Payment Schedule: Review bv the State

3.1. Project Costs; As used in this Agreement, the term 'Project Costs' shall mean all expenses
directly or indireciiy incurred by the Contrscior in (he performance of the Project Activities, as
determined by the State to be eligible end allowable for payment in accordance with Public
Law 102*550 es well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as revised from
time to time and with the rules, regulations, end guidelines estebiished by the Stale. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

3.2. Continuum of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed in 24 CFR 576.39
through 578.63 when used to establish and operate projects under five program components:
permanent housing: transitional housing; supportive services only; HMIS; and, in some cases,
homeless prevention. Administrative costs are eligible for ail components. All components are
subject to the restrictions on combining funds for certain eligible activities in a single project
found in 24 CFR 578.67(c).

3.3. Match Funds:

3.3.1. The Contractor shall provide suffrcienl matching funds, as required by HUO regulations
and policies described in 24 CFR 576.73.

3.3.2. f^atch requirements shall be documented with each payment request.

3.3.3. The Contractor shall match all grant funds except for leasing funds, with no'less than
twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other sources.

3.3.4. The Contractor shall utilize cash match for the cost of activities that are eligible under
subpart 0 of 24 CFR 576. The Contractor shall:

3.3.4.1. Maintain records of the source and use of contributions made to satisfy the
match requirement in 24 CFR 576.73.

3.3.4.2. Ensure records indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each matching
contribution is counted.

3.3.4.3. Ensure records include methodologies that specify how (he values of third party
In-kind contributions were derived.

3.3.4.4. Ensure records Inctude, to the extent feasible, volunteer services (hat are
supported by the same methods used to support the allocation of regular
personnel costs.

3.4. Payment of Prolect Costs:

3.4.1. The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible
expenditures Incurred In the fulfillment of this agreement, and shall be in accordance
with the approved line Items as specified In Exhibit 8-1. Budget, and as defined by HUO
under the provisions of Public Law 102-550 and other applicable regulations, subject to
the availability of sufficient furtds.

3.4.2. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and
allowable costs as stated in Section 4.. Expense Eligibility, below. The Contractor must
have written approval from (he State prior to billing for any other expenst
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3.4.3. Payment of Project Costs shall be made through the utilization of funds as provided
through the U.S. Depaitmeni of Housing and Urban Development Title XtV Housing
programs under the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing
Act (HEARTH Act). Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-5S0). In an amount
and time period not to exceed as specified in section 1.2 Exhibit 0.

3.4.4. Schedule of Payments:

3.4.4.1. All reimbursement requests for all Project Costs, including the final
reimbursement request for this Conlroct. shall be submitted by the fifteenth
(15th) day of each month, for the previous month, and accompaniad by an
invoice from the Contractor for the amount of each requested disbursement
along with a payment request form and any other documentation required, as
designated by the Stale, which shall be completed and signed by the Contractor.

3.4.4.2. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted Invoice and if sufficient
funds are available.

3.4.4.3. The Contractor shall keep records of their activities related to Department
■programs and services, and shall provide such records and any additional
financial Information if requested by the State to verify expenses.

3.4.4.4. In lieu of hard copies submitted to the address listed in Paragraph 2.1.2.; above,
all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to:
housinQ5UDoortsinvoices@dhhs.nh.QOv

3.5. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs:
3.5.1. At any time during the performance of Ihe Services, and upon receipt of the Annual

Performance Report, Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the State may
review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.

3.5.2. Upon such review, the Slate shall disallow any items of expenses that are not
determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures,
and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures, inforrning the
Contractor of any such disallowance.

3.5.3. if the State disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made. It shall refuse to
pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this agreement are
subject to recapture.

3.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to Ihe contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, jn the event of non-
comptiance with any Federal or Stale law. rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or if the said services, products, required report submissions, as detailed In
Exhibits A and B. or NH-HMIS data entry requirennenls have not been satisfactorily
completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

4. Expense Etiglbllltv

4.1. Based on the continued receipt/availabiliiy of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Continuum of Care Program funds specified In this Exhibit 0 from the HUD Continuum of Care
Program, for contract senrices.

4.2. OoeratinQ Expenses:

4.2.1. Eligible operating expenses Include:
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' 4.2.1.1. Maintenance and repair of housing.

4.2.1.2. Properly taxes and Insurance (Including property and car).

4.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of the
housing (provided that the payments must be based on the useful life of the
system and expected replacement cost).

4.2.1.4. Building security for a structure where more than fifty (50) percent of the units or
area Is paid for with grant funds.

4.2.1.5. Utilities. Including electricity, gas ar^d water.

4.2.1.6. Furniture and equipment.

4.2.2. Ineligible costs Include:

4.2.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project.

4.2.2.2. Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service-only facilities.

4.2.2.3. Maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of maintaining and repairing
the housing are included In the lease.

4.3. SuoDOftive Services

4.3.1. Eligible supportive services costs shall comply with all HUD regulations in 24 CFR
578.53, and are available to individuals actively participating in the permanent housing
program.

4.3.2. Eligible costs shall Include:

4.3.2.1. Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs of the assessment required by
578.530) (2).

4:3.2.2. Assistance virilh-moving costs. Reasonable one-lime moving costs are eligible
and include truck rental and hiring a moving company.

4.3.2.3. Case management. The costs of assessing, arranging, coordinating, and
monitoring the delivery of individualized services to meet the needs of the
program participant(s) are eligible costs.

4.3.2.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care, and providing
child-care vouchers, for children from families experiencing homelessness.
Including providing meals and snacks, and comprehensive and coordinated
developmental activities are eligible.

4.3.2.5. Education Services. The costs of improving knowledge and basic educational
skills are eligible.

4.3.2.6. Employment assistance and job training. The costs'of establishing and operating
employment assistance and job training programs are eligible,- Including
classroom, online and/or computer instruction, on-the-job instruction, services
that assisl individuals in securing employment, acquiring learning skills, and/or
increasing earning potential. The cost of providing reasonable stipends to
program participants in employment assistance and job training programs is also
an ePgible cost.

4.3.2.7." Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program participants Is
eligible.

SS-J0Ja8>«84M-Pe8i4A-H P*004o(« D*'*.
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4.3.2.8. Housing 'search and counseling services. Costs of assisting eligible program
participants to locate, obtain, and retain suitable housing are eligible.

4.3.2.9. Legal services. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed attorneys end by
person(s) under the supervision of' licensed attorneys, for advice and
representation In matters that Interfere with homeless individual or family's ability
to obtain and retain housing.

4.3.2.10. Life Skills training. The costs of leaching critical life management skills that may
never have been leerned or have been lost during course of physical or mental
illness, domestic violence, substance abuse, and homelessness are eligible.
These services must be necessary to assist the program participant to function
independently in the community. Component life skills training are the budgeting
of resources and money management, household management, conflict
management, shopping for food and other needed items, nutrition, the use of
public trdnsportatipn. and parent training.

4.3.2.11: Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of
mental health conditions that are provided by licensed professiorials.
Component services are crisis interventions; counseling; individual, family, or
group therapy sessions; the prescription of psychotropic medications or
explanations about the use and management of medications; and combinations
of therapeutic approaches to address multiple problems.

4.3.2.12. Outpatient health services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of
medical conditions when provided by licensed medical professionals.

4.3.2.13. Outreach Services. The costs of activities to engage persons for the purpose of
providing immediate support and intervention, as well as identifying potential
program participants, are eligible.

4.3.2.14. Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program participant intake
and assessment, outpatient treatment; group and individual counseling, and
drug testing are eligibte. Inpatient detoxification and other Inpatient drug or
alcohol treatment are ineligible.

4.3.2.15. Transportation Services are described in 24CFR-576(e) (15).

4.3.2.16. Utility Deposits. This form of assistance consists of paying for utility deposits.
Utility deposits must be one-time, paid to utility companies.

4.3.2.17. Direct provision of services. If the service, described in 24CFR 576.53(e) (1)*(16)
of this section is being directly delivered by the recipient or subrecipient, eligible
costs for those services are described in 24 CFR 578(e) (17).

4.3.2.16. Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible costs under this section is not
an eligible cost of providing supportive services using Continuum of Care
program funds.'Staff training and costs of obtaining professions! Ilcensure or
certifications needed to provide supportive services ere not eligible costs.

4.3.2.19. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to the same extent for program
participants who are unaccompanied homeless youth; persons living with
HIV/AIOS; and victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking.

4.4. Rental Assistance

4.4.1. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless individuals and families.
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4.4.2. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program participant who is already receiving
rental assistance, or living in a housing unit receiving rental assistance. or operating
assistance through other federal. State, or local sources.

4.4.3! Rental assistance musl.l>€ administered in accordance with the policies and procedures
established by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR 576.7(a) (9) and 24 CFR 578.51.
and may t>e;

4.4.3.1. Short term, up to 3 months of rent;

4.4.3.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months: or

4.4.3.3. Long-term, for longer than 24 months,

4.4.4. Grant funds may t>e used for security deposits In an amount not to exceed 2 months of
rent.

4.4.5. An advance payment of the last month's rent may be provided to the landlord, in addition
to the security deposit and payment of Hrst month's rent.

4.4.6. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit If the rent is reasonable, as determined
by the Contractor. In relation to rents being charged for comparable unassisted units,
taking into account the location, size. type, quality, ameniiies. facilities, arid management
and maintenance of each unit.

4.4.7. The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one month's rent to pay
for any damage to housing due to the action of a program participant. For Leasirw
funds only. Property damages may be paid only from funds paid to" the landlord from
security-deposits.

4.4.8. Housing must be in compliance with all Stale and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisonirig Prevention Act. and any other
requirenr»ents of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the condition of
the structure and operation of the housing or services.-

4.4.9. The Contractor must provide one of the following types of rental assistance: Tenant-
based. Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental assistance as described-by HUO in 24
CFR 576.51.

4.4.9.1. Tenant-based rental assistance Is rental assistance in which program
parliclpants choose housing of an appropriate size in which to reside: When
necessary to facilitate the coordination of supportive services, recipients and
subrecipients may require program, participants to live in a specific area for their
entire'period of participation, or in a specific structure for the first year and In a
specific area for the remainder of their period of participation. -Short and medium
term rental assistance provided under the Rapid Re-Housing program
component must be tenant based rental assistance.

4.4.9.2. Sponsor-based rental assistance Is provided through contracts between the
recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private, nonprofit
organization, or a community mental health agency established as a public
nonprofit organization. Program participants must reside in housing owned or
leased by the sponsor.

4.4.9.3. Project-based rental assistance Is provided through a contract with the owner of
an existing structure, where the owner agrees to lease the subsidized units to
program participants. Program participants will not retain rental assistance if
they move,

&outh«»lKnCo««*yS-f*«.lne..RRH Cofttnew WUlVy / /
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4.4.9.4. For pfoject*based, sponsor-based, 'or tenant-based rental assistance, program
participants must enter into a lease agreement for a term of at least one year,
which is terminable for cause. The leases must be automatically renewable
upon expiration (or terms that are a minimum of one rnonth long.'except on prior
notice by either party.

4.5. Administrative Costs;

4.5.1. Eligible administrative costs include:

4.5.1.1. The Contrector may use funding awarded under this part, for the payment of
project administrative costs related to the planning and execution of Continuum
of Care activities. This does not include staff and overhead costs directly related
to carrying out activities eligible under 24 CFR 576.43'through 576 57. because
those costs are eligible as part of those activities.

4.5.1.2. General management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of overall program
management, coordination, mpnitoring and evaluation. These costs include, but
are not limited to. necessary expenditures for the following:

4.5.1.2.1.- Salaries, wages, and related costs of the staff of the contractor's, or other
staff engage in program administration.

4.5.1.2.1.1. In charging costs to this category, the contractor may include the entire
salary, wages, and related costs allocable to the program of each
person whose primary responsibilities with regard to the program
Involve program administration assignments, or the pro rata share of the
salary, wages, end-related costs of each person whose job includes any
program administration assignments. The contractor may only-use one
of these methods, for each fiscal year grant. Program administration
assignments Include the following: ■

4.5.1.2.1.1.1. Preparing program budgets and schedules, and amendments to
those budgets and schedules;

4.5.1.2.1.1.2. Developing systems for assuring compliance with program
requirements:

4.5.1.2.1.1.3. Developing interagency agreements and agreements with
subrecipients and Contractors to carry out program activities;

'4.5.1.2.1.1.4. Monitoring program activities for progress and compliance with
program requirements:

4.5.1.2.1.1.5. Preparing reports and other documents related to the program for
submission to HUD;

4.5.1.2.1.1.6. Coordinating the solution of audit and monitoring findings;

4.5.1.2.1.1.7. Preparing reports and other documents directly related to the
program submission to HUD;

4.5.'1.2.1.1.6. Evaluating program results against staled objectives;

4.5.1.2.1.1.9. Managing or supervising persons whose primary responsibilities with
regard to the program include such assignments as those described
In sections 4.5.1.2.1.1.1. through 4.5.1.2.1.1.8. above. Exhibit 0.

4.5.1.2.1.1.10. Travel costs incurred for official business in carrying out the program;

SeuCnMilm Cenwunffy Uf^K •»*.. RRM fi Conweiof Wau.. ̂
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4.5.1.2.1.1.11.Administralive services performed under third paity contracts or
agreements, including such services as general legal services,
accounting services, and audit services;

4.5.1.2.1.1.12. Other costs for goods and services required for administration of the
program, including such goods and services as rental or purchase of
equipment, insurance, utilities, office supplies, end rental end
rnaintenance. but not purchase, of office space;

4.5.1.2.1.1.13.Training on Continuum of Care requirements. Costs of providing
training on Continuum of Cere requirements and aRendlng HUD-
Sponsored Continuum of.Care trainings; and

4.5.1.2.1.1.14. Environmental review. Costs of carrying out the environmental review
responsibilities under 24 CFR 578.31.

4.6. Leasing:

4.6.1. When the Contractor Is leasing the structure, or porlions thereof, grant funds may be
used to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a structure or structures, or portions
thereof, to provide housing or supportive services to homeless persons for up to three (3)
years. Leasing funds may not be used to lease units or structures owned by the
contractor, their parent organization, any other related organl2dtion(s). or organizations
that are members of a partnership, where the partnership owns the structure, unless
HUD authorized an exception for good cause.

4.8.2. Requirements:

4.6.2.1. Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent for all or part of a structure
or structures, the rent paid must be reasonable in relation to rents.being charged
in the area for comparable space. In addKion, the rent paid may not exceed
rents currently being charged by the same owner for comparable unassisted
space.

.4.6.2.2. Leasing individual units. When the grants are used to pay rent for Individual
housing units, the rent paid must reasonable in relation to rents being charged
for comparable units, taking into account the location, size, type, quality,
amenities, facilities, and management services. In addition, the rents may not
exceed rents currently being charged for comparable units, and the rent paid
may not exceed HUD-determined fair rnarkei rents.

4.6.2.3. Utilities, if electricity, gas. and water are included in the rent, these utilities may
be pakJ from leasing funds. If utilities are not provided by landlord, these utility
costs are operating costs, except for supportive service facilities. If the structure
is being used as a supponive service facility, then these utility costs are a
supportive service cost.

4.6.2.4. Security deposits and first and last month's rent. The contractor may use grant
funds to pay security deposits, in ,an amount not to exceed 2 months of actual
rent. An advance payment of last month's rent mey be provided to the .landlord
In addition to security deposit and payment of the first month's rent.

4.6.2.5. Occupancy agreements and subleases. Occupancy agreements and subleases
are required as specified In 24 CFR 578.77(a).

4.6.2.6. Calculation of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy charges end rent from
program participants must be calculated as provided In 24 CFR 578.77.
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4.6.2.7. Program Income. Occupancy charges end rent collected from program
participants are program income and may be used as provided under 24 CFR
578.97.

4.6.2.0. Transition. Refer to 24CFR 578.49(b)(6)

4.6.2.9. Rent paid may only reftect actual costs and must be reasonable in comparison
to rents charged in the area for similar housing units. Oocumenialion of rent
reasonableness must be kept on file by the Contractor.

4.6.2.10. The portion of rent paid with grant furxJs may not exceed HUO-determined fair
market rents.

4.6.2.11. The Contractor shall pay individual landlords direcity: funds may not be given
directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

4.6.2.12. Property damages may only be paid from money paid to the landlord for security
deposits.

4.6.2.13. The Contractor cannot lease a building that it already owns to itself.

4.6.2.14. Housing musi be in compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention.Act, end any other
requirements of-the jurisdiction In which the housing Is located regarding the
condition of the structure and operation of the housing or services.

4.7. The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water); however,
the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified in HUD regulations (24
CFR 578.77). Other services such as cable, air conditioning, telephone. Inlernel access,
cleaning, paricing, pool charges, elc. 'are at the participant's option.

4.8. The Contractor shall have any staff charged In full or part to this contract.' or counted as
match, complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.

6. Contractor Financial Manaoement System

5.1. Fiscal Conlrol: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting procedures
which assure proper disbursement of. and accounting for. grant funds and any required
nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed In direct operations of
the Contractor.

5.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with 2 CFR parl
200 or such equivalent system as the State may require.
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WCAti PQQVISIQNS

Contractors Obligations: The Conlfector covenants and agrees that oil funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
Individuals and. in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenor^ts and
egrees os foltows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Lews; If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibltity
of ir^ividuals such eligibility determination shall be mede in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies end procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Dolormlnotlon: Eligibilily determinations shall be made on forma provided by
the Department for that purpose end shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contrpctor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall Include ell
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other irtformaiion as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation

.  regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hoarlnga: The Contractor understands that ail applicants for services herourxfer, as wall as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
. Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that ell applicants for services shall be permittod to fill out
an application form end that each applicant or re-applicani shaO be Informed of his/her right to efair
hearing in accordence with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Klchbaclts: The Contractor agrees ihal it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gralully or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the Stale in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The Slate may lBmiir\ale this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if It Is
delerm'tned that paymento. gratuities or offers of empto^ent of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, otficers. emjrfoyees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Paymente: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, conirocl or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to iho Effective Date of the Conlracl
and no payments shall be mede for expenses incurred by the Conlracior for ony services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as"otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is el'gible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase; Notwithstandir»g anything to the contrary contained in the Contract.nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligele or require (he Departmen] to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor In excess of the Contractors costs, at a reto
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessa^ to assure the quality of auch service, or et e
rale which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible Individuals or other third party
funders for suctl senrice. If ol any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Fine!
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Departmeni shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments horounder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or In excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible Individuals
or other third party funders. the Departmerit may elect to;

7.1, Renegotiate the rales for payment hereunder. In which event new rates shall be established:
7.2.. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimburscmoniln

excess of costs;
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shan consthute en Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contredor egrees to
reimburse the Department for ell funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services

' provided to any iridividual who is found by the Department to be ir>eGgible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTiON. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIOENTIALITY:

8. Melnienanc* of Recordo: in addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants end egrees tomaintoin the following records during the ControctPeHod:

'  6.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting eB costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor In (he performance of the Contract, and ell
income received or collected by the Contractor during Ihe Conlract Pehod. said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
property reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to irtclude, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, end original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials. Inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

6.2. Statistical Records: Slatislical. enrollment, attendance or visK records lor each recipient of
services during the Conlract Period, which records shall include all records of epplicetionend
eligibility (including ell forms required to determine eligibitity for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services end all Invoicos submitted to ihe Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Rocords; Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulalions.the
Contractor shell retain medical records on oe^ paiient/recipieni of services.

9. Audit: Conlractor shall submit en annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
egency Hscdl year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. 'Audits of States, LoMI Governments.'and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs. Activities end Functions, issued by the US General Aaounling Office (GAO standards) as
Ihey pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audh and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department. Ihe United Slates Department of Heallh end Human Servic'es. and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to ell reports end records meinlalned pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitalion of obligations of the Contract, it Is
understood and agreed by the Cor\trecior that the Contractor shall be held Gable for eny state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Oepanmeni, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such en
excepliort.

10. Conridontlslity of Rocordo: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by Ihe Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to stole lows ond the rogulotions of
the Department regarding the use end disclosure of such information, disclosure may be mode lo
public officials requiring such information ir> connection with (heir official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract: end provided further, thai
the use or disclosure by eny party of any informstlon concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with ihe administration of (he Department or (he Contractor's responsibilities wilh
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent ol the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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NotwHhslending anything to the conirary cofltained'horcin iho covcnania and conditions conlained in
(he Paragraph shell survive ihe termination of ihe Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Siatislicat: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at Ihefollowing
times if roquesied by the Department.
11.1. Interim Finenclai Reports: Written interim finor\cial reports containing o detailad deschptionof

.all costs and rwn-allowable expenses Incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing euch other Information as shall be deemed satisfactory by ihe Department to
justify the rale of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be.submltted on iho form
desigr^oted by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shoD be submitted wHhIn thirfy (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form salisfactory to the Department end shall
contain o summery statement of progress toward goals and objectives staled in the Proposal
end other Information required by the Departrr»ent.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Departmeni of the-
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price timrtation
hereunder. the Contract end all (he obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of (he Contract ere to be performed after the end of the term of this Corriroct and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, thai if, upon review of the
Final Expendlluro Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Departmeni shall.ratain the light, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disaltowed or to recover such sums from ihe Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports end olher materials prepared
during or resuRIng from Ihe per1ormar>ce of the services of (he Contract shall include ihefollowing.
statement:

13.1. The preparation of (his (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the Stale
of New Hampshire.'Departmeni o1 Health end Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the Slate of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or

.  required, e.g.. (ha United Stales Department of Health end Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All meleriats (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shell have prior approval from OHKS before printing, production,
distr^tion or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and ell original materials
produced, including, but not limned lo. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce eny materials produced under the controclwithout
prior written approval from OHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: in the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with ell laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities end with any direction of any Public OfTicer or officers
pursuant lo laws which shall (mpqse an order or duty upon (he contractor with respecl to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the serv'cos at such facility. If any governmental licenie or
permii shall be requir^ for the operation of the said fecirity or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor wit) procure sakf license or permK, end will at all limes comply with the terms and
conditions of each such I'lcense or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees (hat. during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with ail rules, orders, reguialions, and requirements of the Stale Office of the Fire Marahaland
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by*
laws end reguialions.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP); The Contractor will provide en Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) lo (he Office for Cfvil Rlghls, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), If 11 has
received a single award of $500,600 or more. II the'recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employee, tt will maintain a currant ££OPon fitaand aubmit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP is on file: For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grentees
with fewer then 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to aubmit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and rr>edicel and educational InsiKutions ere exempt from the
EEOP roQuircmeni. but ore required to submit a ccrtificatior^ form to the OCR to ciaim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms ore evaiiabie at: htip://www.oip.usdoi/about/ocr/pdf8/ccrt.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulllng agerKy guldarwe. oaltonelorigin
discnmlrteiion irvcludat discriminalior^ on iho botb of limitod EngGsh profictency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control end Safe Slreeta Act of 1968 end Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must take reasortable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whtstleblower ProteclJone: The
■following shall eppty to ell contracts that exceed the Simptified Acquisition Threshold as defined in40
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Contractor Emplovee Whistleblower Rights ano Requirement To Inform Employecs of
WhjstlebuOwer Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees wof1(i»ig on this contract will be subject to the whisllcbtower rights
end remedies In the pilot program on Cwlraclor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Ad for'Fiscal Year, 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) end far 3.908. .

(b) The Contractor sheD inform its employees in writing, in the predorrilnani language of the i^rkforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in saclion
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractore: OHHS recognizes that the Contractor may.choose to use subcontradors vrth
greater expertise to perform certain health core aerviccs or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility end accountability for the function(9). Prior to
subcontrading. the Contractor shall evaluate the subconirsclor's ability to perform the delegated
fu<>ction(s). This is accomplished through a v/ritten agreement that apecifiea activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoklrtg the delegation or imposing senctions if
the subconlroctor's performance Is t\o\ adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions-as the Contrador and (he Conlractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subconiractor. the Conlractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcorMractor's ability to perform theedivilies. before delegeting

the function
19.2. Neva a written agreement with the subcontrector that specifies activities and reportingresponsibilities and how sanctlons/revocaiion will be managed if tha subcontractor's .

performance Is not adequate
19.3. MonHor the subcontractor's peffonmance on en ongoing basis

ExMbl C - SpecUl Provlsiaru Contrector inlUal
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19.4. Provide to OHHS en annual schedule Identifying all subcontractors, delegated funclionsend
responsibilities, end when the subcontractor'a performance will be reviewed

19.5. OHMS shell, at Its d'cscrel'cn, review and approve at) subcontracts.

if the Contractor identines dericier>cias or areas.for improvement ere ideniiTied. the Contractor shall
take correcltve ectiort.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.V COSTS; Shell mean those direct and indirect Items of expense determined by the Depanment
to bo allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost end accounting pnncipies esiebiished
In accordance with state and lodoro) laws, regulations, rules end orders.

20.2. .DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health end Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAl: If applicabte. shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and containing e description of the-services end/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance vrllh the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each aervice that the Contractor Is to provide to eligible Individuals hereunder, shall
mean that period of time or thai spedned ecttvHy determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit B of (he Contract.

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or slate laws, regulations, rules, orders, end
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
all such lews, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from lime to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Conlrector under this
Contract wilt not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

' Emitill C - SpMla) Provttloru Corwsctor inbisl).
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REVISIONS TQ STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

\

1. Revisions to Form P«37, OenefBl Provlolona

1.1. Section A, CondrtionQl Nature of Aofeemem. f$ replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Nolwithstendlno any provision 61 this Agreement to (ha contrary. eD ̂ ligations of the State
hereunder. includtng without limitation, the continuence of payrnents. In whole or in perl.
ofKJof this Agreement are contingent upon continued approprtaiion or availability of funds.
Including any aubseguent changes to the epproprtatlon or evolioblliiy of funds effected by
any state or federal legislative or executive octbn that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the eppropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event stiall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of approprialed or available funds. In
the event of e reduction, lermirration or modifcalion of eppropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to vrrthhoW payment until such funds become avaitable, If ever.
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Cortiractor notice of Such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not bo required to transfer funds from any other source or
gccour^t inio the Accounlfs) kJeniified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
Number, or any other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10. Termination, is amended by adding the following language;

10.1 The Slate may terminate the Agreement el any lime for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the Stete. 30 days after giving (he Contractor wrinen notice (hat (he State is exercising Its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early f'ermtneliqn. the Contractor shell, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop end submil to Ihe Staid a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreemerit, including but not limited to. Identifying the present arvJ future needs of citonls
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to rneet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate wHh Ihe Stale and shell promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to. any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide or»going communication end revisions of the Trensition Plan to the Stole
as requested. '

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not lunited to clients receiving
services under the.Agreement ore Iransilioned to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the Slate, (he Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish e melhod of nolrfying clients and other offKted Individuals
about the transition. The Conlrodor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the Stole as deacribod ebove.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department resen/es the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years.
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, avelleble funding, written egroemenl of the
parties end epproval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Emt&lt C-t - Rovtslons/Exespttons lo SlsrtCsre Conirsd lenpusge Centrsctor IntUeti
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the Generel Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections SISI-SISO of the Drug-Free WorVplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle 0: 41
U.S.C. 701 et eeq.), end further agrees to have the Coniractor's representative, as identified in Sections ■
1.11 and 1.12 of (t^ General Pros/isions execule the following Cenificatior^;

ALTERNATIVE I . FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTfMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OP EDUCATION .CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE . CONTRACTORS

This certlfiCdilon is required by the regulations implamendng Sections 5151-5160 of the Orug-Free
WortJptace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. THIe V. Subliile D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 3i.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Siaction 3017.630(c) of Ihe
regulation provides thai o grantee (end by inference, sub-grantees end sub-conlroctors) that Is e State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by (he certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of feet upon which reliance is placed when the ogency owards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termir>ation of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send H to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.

Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or vhli continue to provide a drug-free wprkplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement riotifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance Is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to Inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplaco;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitotior). and employee assistance programs; and
t.2.4. The penalties that maybe imposed upon employees for drug obuse violations

occurring in Ihe workplace;
1.3. Making It a requirement that each employee to be engeged in the performarKe of the grant be

given a copy of the slotement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the slotement required by paragraph (a) that, as e condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by Ihe terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify Ihe employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace r>o later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency In writing, wkhin ten-calendar days after receiving notice under
•  subparagreph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.

Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
ofTiccr on whose grant octMty Ihe convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhtbli 0 - CertlftcAilon repardino Drug Free Vender Intiials
WotkplBCe ReqUremeni)
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the
identiftcotion numberfs) of each affected granl;

1.6. Taxing one of tho follo^ng actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice urvder
subparagraph 1.4.2, wKh respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Joking appropriate personnel action ogain&l such en employee, up to and Including

termination, consistent with the requirements of (he Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
emerKJod; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to partlc'pate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
reltabililaiion program approved for such purposes by e Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other oppropriate ogency:

1.7. Mfik«r>g a good forth eflort iocontirtue lomeintein e drug-free workplace through
imptementallon of paragraphs 1.1.1.2. 1.3.1.4. VS. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert in tho space provided below the site(s) for tho performance of work done In
connection with the apecrfic grant.

Pbce of Performance (street oddress, city, county, state, zip code) (lisi each location)

Checlt O if there are workplaces on file that are not identifred here.

Vendor Name:

Dale N^e: A
T/e: C*-o

QmExhibit 0 - CatfflcaOoo rogeidlng Oug Froo Vsneor inlUali,
WwkdKoRoqJrumcnij •'. | i
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CERTIFICATION RECARPINQ LOBBYINO

The Vendor identified in Section i .3 of the Generel Provijions agrees to compfy whh the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Goverriment wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbyi^. end
31 U.S.C. 1352. and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of tfve General Provisions oxecuie the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEf»ARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Progreme (indicate applicable program covered):
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-0
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Tillo XX
•Medicaid Program under Tllle X(X
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Oevelopmenl Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge end belief, thai:

1  No Fedora! appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any parson for influencing or attempting lo influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, en officer or emptoyeo of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, granl. loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2  If any funds oiher than Federal appropriated funds have been peid or will be paid to any person for
Influencing or eltempling lo influence on officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
on officer or employee of Congress, or en cmptoyee of a Member of Congress In connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific menlion sub-grantee or sub-
conlractor), the undersigned shall complete end submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance vrilh ils inslruclions. attached and idenlified es Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require thol the language of this corUfication be Included in the award
dxoment for sub-awards el all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, end contracts under gmnts.
loans, end cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and.disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material reproser^alion of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered Into. Submission of this certificalioo is a prerequisite for making or enlering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. THIe 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the
certificalion shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

Date N^e:
Tine: cto

Emibll E - Csniflcjilon Rogsrdlng LoPOylng Vsndw
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor idenliried in Section l .3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12$49 end 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Ooberment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, end further agrees to hove the Contractor's
representative, es identiried in Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certtficalion;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing end submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary podicipanl is providing the
c^iHcstion set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certificelion required below will not necesserily result In denial
of participation In this covered transaction. If necessary. Ihe prospective participanl shall submit on
e]d>lanetion of why il cannot provide the cerlincation. The certificetion or explanation will be
considered In connection wHh ihe NH Department of Health and Human Sennces' (OHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of (he prospectivo primary
participant to furnish o certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation In
this transaction.

3. The cartirication in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS deteimir\ed to enter inlo this transaction. If it Is later determinod that the prospective
primary perticipanl knowingly rendered an erroneous certirication, in addition to other remedies
evailabla to the Federal Government. OHHS mey.tenminato this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immodiale written notico to the OHHS agency to
whom this propose) (contract) is submitted if at any timo tho prospoclrve primary porticipsnt learns
that its certirication was erroneous yvhcn submittocf or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered trartsect'ion.'.'debBrred.* 'suspended,' 'inetigible.' 'lower tier covered
irensaction,* 'participant,' 'person,* 'primary covorod transaction,* 'principal.' 'prDposaJ.* and
'votuntarity excluded,' os used in (his clause, have the meanings set out in the Dennitions and
Coverage sections of (ho rules implementing Exoculive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definilions.

.6. The prospective primary participdril agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should Ihe
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any tower tier covered
trensactlon with a person who is debarred, suspended, decte/ed ineligible, or volunterlly excluded
' from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by OHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant furthor ogroos by submitting this proposal (hat it will include the -
-  clause titled 'Certificetion Regardino Oeberment. Suspension. Ineligibilily and Vofunlary Exclusion -

Lower Tier Covered Transactions.* provided by OHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solidielions for lower tier covered transactions.

6. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon e ceitKicalion of e prospective participant in a
tower tier covered-transaction that II is not debarred, suspended. Ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered tronsoction. unless it knows that Ihe certification Is orrbnoous. A participant may
decide the method end frequency by which it determines (he eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to. cheek the Nonprocuremoni List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to reqiere establishment of a system of records
in (srder to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. Tt>e knowledge and

Edi!t)(lF>C«rUfic40or)Rostn9tngOet)aJTnenl. SuspcAjlon V«ndorlr9
And Other RMponslWiay MjttersAno uiner KMporuiouay lunerj v / i
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infofmeiion of a participant is nol reouirad to exceed that which/is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

to. Except for transaciions authorized under parograph 6 of.lhese instructions, if a participant in a
covered iransaciiofl Knowingly eniel^ Into a tower tier covered iranseciion with a person who is
suspended, debarred. Ineligible, or volunlarity excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the PedcrBl government. OHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVEREP transactions ^ ^
11. The proapective-primory portlcipont certifies to the beet of its knovrtedge and belief, thot rt end its

principals;
11.1. ere not presently deberrod. suspended, proposed for debarmonl. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or e criminal offense in
connection with obloining. attempting to oMein. or performing a public (Federal. Stale or tocal)
transaction or a contract under e public transaction; violalion of Federal or Slate antitrust
statutes or commission of emt>ezzlement, ihofi, forgery. brit>cry. fotsifiCdlion or destruction of
records, making false statements, or recoMng stolen property;'

11.3. ere not presently indicled for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. .Stale or focal) with cortimission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certiftcation; end

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this applicalion/pfoposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant Is ur>able to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach en explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing ar^d submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Pert 76. certifies to the best of Us knowledge and belief that it.and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred. susperKfed. proposed for debarmonl. declared tnaligiblo, or

• voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier pertlcipanl is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shad attach en explanation to this proposal (contract). •

14 The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
ifKlude this clause enlHIed 'Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineligibiliiy. and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions.* without modification in eD lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vondor Namo:

ff/7/f9
Date Name: Af4M4/r/*6

do
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CERTIPICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAtTH.0ASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLE6L0WER PROTECTIONS
N

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by algnature of (he ContrBctor'a
ropresentalive as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of (he General Provisions, to execute the foltowtng
certification;

Vendor will ccmpfy. and will.require any subgrantees or aubcontractora to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimlnetlon requirerhents, which mey includa;

• the Omnibus Crime ConUol arid Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
redplef^s of federal rundir>g under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the deCvery of services or benerus. on the basis of rece. color. reliolor\. nalionat origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment OpporlunHy Ptan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act ol 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
referonca. the cMl rights obligations of lha Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal Ending under this
statute are prohibited from drscrimlnoting. either In employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, end sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the Crvll Rights Act of 18S4 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from drscrimlnoting on the basis of raca. color, or national origin in any program or ecUvHy);

. the RehabilHation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibils recipients of Federal financial
assistance from dlscrlmlrxatlr^g on the basis of dbobiGty. in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

• the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131*34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disebiHties in employment, State and local
governmont services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation:

> the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681; 1683.1685*86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

• the Age Oiscriminetioo M of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106*07). which prohbils discrimination on the
basis of age In programs or activities receiving Federal fmanciai assistance, li does not indu^
employment dcscrlmination;

• 26 C.F.R. pi. 31 (U.S. Department of Justico Regutatioris - OJJOP Grenl Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Hondiscriminetion; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Exoculrve Order No. 13276 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamentol principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with foKh-based and neighborhood organizations;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for FaHh-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorfzalion
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112*239. enacted January 2.2013) Ihe Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprbel for certain whistle blowing activities In conrtection with federal gronio and contracts.

The certificate aet put below Is o maieriai reprasaniaiion of (act upon which reliance Is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certificalion or eolation of the certifrcelipn shell be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

ExMUG
Vendor Int&jf
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in the ©vent e federal or Stale court or Federal or Stale administrative egericy make* a finding of
diacrimlnetion after a doe process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or aex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of Ihe finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Hcellh-end Human Sorvlces. arKl
to the Department of Health artd Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signaiure of tho Contractor's
fopresemative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the (oltowing
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the pfovislons
Indicated above.

Vendor Name:

Daia N/me: A
itie

ExKMC
V^oi InillsiS
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CERTIFlCATtON REQARDINO ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Lew 103-227. Part C • environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that amoklng not be permittod In any portion of any Indoor fociDiy owned or ieasad or
contracted for by an entity end uaed routinety or regularly for the provision of health, day care, educalior^.
or library services to children under the age of 10. if the services ere funded by Federal programs either'
directly or through State or lo^l governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's aenrices provided in private residences, facilities funded solefy by
Medicara or Medicaid funds, end portlor^s of facilities used for inpetieni drvg or elcohot treatment. Failure
to comply wnth the provisions of the law mey result in the Imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of en administrative compliance order on (he responsible entity.

The Vendor idenlified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by aignalure of the Contractor's
fopresenlative as idervtified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the Gerveral Provisions, to execute the following
certification; /

1. By signing end submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
atl applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C. known as the PfO-ChikJren Acl of 1994.

Vendor Name;

nhht
Dale Name;

illo:

cuomsnion)
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTAeillTY
ACT BUSINESS ASSOCIATE

AGREEMENT

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104^191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate* shall mean .the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement end 'Covered Entity*
shall mean (ho State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

t1 DennHlons.

.8. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach* in section 164.402 of Title 4S.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity' has the rneaning givert such term in.section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Desionated Record Set' shall have the same moaning as the term "designated record set*
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data AQoreoatlon' shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation* in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Ooerations* shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

Q. 'HITECH Act* means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TilleXIII, Subtille 0. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h., "HIPAA* means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and (he Standards for Privacy end Security of Individually Identifiable Heallh
information, 45 CFR Parts 160.162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Indivkfuai' shell have (he same meaning as the term 'individual' in 45 CFR Section 160.103
end shall Include e person who qualifies es a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(9).

/

j. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Idanlifiable Heallh
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United Stales
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information* shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information" In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the Infofmation created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.
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I. "Required bv Law' shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary'shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Secufliv Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at A5 CFR Part 164. Subpart 0. and amondmonta thereto.

o. "Unsecured Proteetad Heaith Information" maans protected health Information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing'organization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions • All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160. 162 and 164, as amended from lime to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) BuBlnesfl Aaaoclate Use and DIscloaurc of Protected Health fnformatlon.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate. Iiicluding but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not u^. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operaUons of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Busiriess Associate must;Obtain, prior to making any such disclosure. (I)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of'any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that il is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
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Associate sHbII refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted ell
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Assodate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by edditional restrictions over end above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall hot disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(9) ObtlQatlona and Activities of Buslneaa Aeeoclate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immsdiately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health Information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health Information and/or any security Incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when It becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likeiihobd of re-Identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health Information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

the Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 46 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of Its Internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
pu^oses of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restricUons and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractors business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiyi(]g PHI
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pursuant to this Agreoment, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph 013 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Se^on 164.524.

h. Wlhin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for en
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. (he Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amerwJment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

1. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528!

j. Wthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request froni Covered, Entity for a
request for an accouriting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associale shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill lts obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance"with 45 CFR
Section 164.526.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)

,  business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity stiall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
Individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate hipaa and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall Instead respond to (he individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

1. Wthin ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, ell PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate In connection with the
Agreement, end shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protecbons of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeaslble, for so long as Busing
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a.

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires Ihet the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Qbllaatlons of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limilation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to indrviduals in accordance vriih 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the eirtent that such change or limitation may effect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b  Covered Entity stiall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered ErMlty by Individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 Of 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c  Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions,on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may eflect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may imrriedialcly terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately .
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity, if Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure Is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous.

a. Dftfinitions and Reoutalorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to tin^. A reference in the Agreement, as amended.to include.this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity' and Business Associate agree to lake such aclio'n as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as.is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with.the changes in the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c  pntfl Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

ft Intcroretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security
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SeorMation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
persbn(s) or circumstance Is held Invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are dedared severable.

Survival. Provisions In this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
dofehee and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duty executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health end Human Services So»rH ur&iSruu/ Sca^vicas 3r*s)C.
of the VendorState

Signature of AuthorV^ Representative

ame of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Oate^

Sigritfture of Ai^orized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

dio
Title of Authorized Representative ■

Date
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rFPTinCATION BFOARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACC_OUNTftB|MTV AND TRANSPARENCY
^  ACT fFFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Foderal Funding Accountabilily nnd Tfansparoncy Act (FFATA) roquiros prime awardoes o( Individual
Foderal grants equal to or groaicr than $25,000 and awarded on or after October V 2010. to report on
data related to exocutrve compensation and associated firsi-ttar sub-grants of $25,000 or more, (f ihe
initial award is below $25,000 bol subsequent grant modiricalions result in a total award equal (o or over
525 000 the award is subject lo the FFATA reporting requlremerils. as of the date of the award,
in acccrtance with'2 CFR Pert 170 (Reporting Subeward end Executive Compensation Information), the
Oopoftmonl of Heallh and Human Services (OHHS) must report the following informoton for any
subevrtird or contrecl ewerd eubject to iho FFATA reporting requlfcmonts;
1. Name of entity ' ' ■
2. Amount of award
3. Funding ager»cy
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptivo of Ihe purpose of Iha funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique idenlifior of Ihe entity (DUNS d)
10. Total compensation end names of Ihe lop five executives if:

10.1. f^ore than 80% of annual gross revenues ere from the Federal governmanl. end ihoso
revenues ere greater than $25M annually end

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reportirtg lo Ihe SEC.

Prime grant reclpfente-mosl submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the oward or award emandmenl is made. . , ,
The Vendor identiried in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to compty with the Provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Tranaparency Act, Public Lew 109'282 and Public Lew 110-252.
end 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Informolion). and further egrees
to have the Contractor's represenlalive, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genorel Provisions
execute the following Certification; ...u r^ - .
The below named Vendor agrees lo provide needed informalion as oulimed above lo the NH Department
of Health and Human Services end lo comply with a'n applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act.

Vendor Name:

liiM
Dale A A^/q/j/urA'6

Cf.o

^ame:
TiUo: ✓ ̂  _

cuDHMVitoro

EiNM i - CertlftctUon Regirtflng the Feoeftf Fufldlog Vendor IntUeU.
AecoufileWity And Traniperency Ad (FFATA) Compliance (/
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FORMA

As the Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genenst Provisions. I certify thai (he responses to the
below bated duostions are true end accurate.

1. The DUNS number tor vour entity is: QSTI 1 \

2. In your business or orsenization'o preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or orgenizetion
receive (1) 60 percent or more of your ennusl gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, aubcontracts. -
loans, gronls, eub-gronts. ot>dyor cooporotivo ogroernonts; end (2) $28,000,000 or moro in ennusl
gross revenues from tJ.S. federal controcts. subcontracts, loans, gronts. subgronts. end/or
cooperative agreements?

YES

If the answer to U2 ebove b NO, slop here

If the answer to U2 ebove is YES, please answer the following;

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
busir>ess.or organization through periodic.reports filed under section 13(0) or lS(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.76m(a). 7^d)) or section 6104 of the tntemai Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to 03 above Is YES. stop here

If the answer to 03 above Is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names end compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

ouooonioni

&diraQ j - CenlftcsSon Rdgsroirtg me FeCei«i Funding
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Derinilions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning In this document:

1. 'Breach' means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized' disclosure,
unaulhoriz^ acquisition, .unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and (or an other then
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally Identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Inforrriation.' Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach* in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. ■Computer Security Incideni' shall have- the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident' in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61. Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information' or ■Confldenlial Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as ail medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal Information including without' limitation; Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the Stale of NH ► created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
Slate or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but Is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI),- Persona! Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confldenlial Information.

4. 'End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1986 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incidenr means en act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
wt^lch includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
fi rmware,.or software chareclBrislics without the owner's knowledge, inslfuclion, or
consent.' Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouling of physical or electronic

V5 Leiru>d»6l0r09ne ExHdi\K ControcloflnW»1»
OHKS

On.
Security Req^jcmenu

Pigelois Diia 'rnin



DocuSign Envelope ID: EF6B0FB2-0258-4215-B3C8-481BE66658F6

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: 70d69206-650E-4381-90S7-109A88ggF9C2

OocuSign Envtiope ID: 4B38332e-D322-409A-92F&-74ECO9AS0O74

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

OHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. 'Open Wireless Network* means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Oepartment of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the Stata, to transmit) will be considered en open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted Pi. PFI.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

6. 'Personal Information* (or 'PI*) means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's Identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. biometrlc records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule* shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and' 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health end Human Services.

10.-'Pfotected Health Information* (or 'PHI*) has the same meaning-as provided In the
definition of 'Protected Health Information" in the HlPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule* shall mean the Security Standards for (he Protection of Electronic
Protect^ Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health information* means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology star>dard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals end is
developed or endorsed by e standards developing organization (hat Is accredited by

.  the American National Standards Insirtute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under (his Contract. Further, Contractor,
including'but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and. Security Rule..

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by taw. in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying OHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If OHHS notifies the Contractor that OHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above ihose uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contrector must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The ConlractOf agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor aVb^s DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of OHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

11. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidenilal Data between applications, (he Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated, by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption .capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks end Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of Iransmittir^g DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent lo and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such Information.

4. Encrypted Web Sile. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, (he secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web sile must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Sen/ices, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Oropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mall Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Date via cerliried ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named Individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User Is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

6. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data vie en open
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wireless networtt. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless r>etwork.

9. Remote User Communicabon. If End User is employing remote communicabon to
access or transmit Confidenbai Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
Installed on the End User's mobile devlce(s) or laptop from whicn informetion will be
transrhicted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocci. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
infonmabon. SFTP folders arxJ sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cyde (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours)..

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor wit) only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will haVe 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process date cotlected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locatiohs.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring-capabilities ere in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. the Contractor agrees to provide security ewereness and. education lor Its Er^
Users in support of protecting Department conndential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to-retain all electronic ar>d hard copies of Confidential Data
In a secure location and Identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored In a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HlTECH cDmpliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy end security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and arili-malware utilities. The environment, as 8
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

6. Disposition

1. If the Contractor-will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or Its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for

.  securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain wrinen certrfication for any Stale of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer Iri use. electronic media containing State of
New Harripshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with indusiry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example."
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 600-86, Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Oepanment of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The wrinen certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been property destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of date erasure, also Known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the OHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential Information collected, process^, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor wll maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape. disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The- Contractor will malntairt appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential lnformatioi>
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems end/or
Oepariment confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential intormation.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of en internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access arid authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as pan of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department sys1em($). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor'and any epplicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Coritractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Oepanmenl and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request (0 complete a System
Management Sunrey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Oepartmenl and
Contractor to monitor for any changes In risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Coniractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Oepariment may request the survey be completed when the
scope of ihe engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any Stale of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership mernber within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach-LiabilityT In Ihe event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The Stale shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach. Including but not limiled to: credit monrtoHng services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the txeach.

12. Contractor must, comply with oil applicable statutes and r^ulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must In all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of P'l end PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 tJ.S.C. § 5S2q), OHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable heaflh
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to-
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less then the level and scope of security requirements
established by the Stale of New Hampshire. Department of information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at httpsi/^vww.nh.gov/doil/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Informalion Technology policies, guideiines. standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and the
Slate's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or Includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the Slate of New Hampshire nelworX.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Conridentlal Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such OHHS Data to
perform their official duties In connection with purposes Identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Conridentlal Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard (his Information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential information only If encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential information to the extent permined by lew.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and Individually
idenUfiable data derived from OHMS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as weD as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locKs, card keys.
Oiometric.ldenliriera, etc.).

g. onty authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, Including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in ail cases,

.such data must be encrypted at-all times when In transit, at rest, or when
stored on-portable media as required in section IV above.

h. In ail other instances Confidential. Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understend that their user credentials (user narne and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential Information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance yvith this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirernents provided in herein. HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data •
Is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. ■ LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer end Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agenc/s documented Incident Handling end Breach Notification
procedures and In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 305. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obllgaiions and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will;

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personalty identifiable information is involved in Incidents:

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in'this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine (he risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents: and
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5. petermine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, end bear costs associated with the Breach notice as wet! as any mitigation

• measures.

-  Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pi must be addressed end reported, as
eppticable, in accordance with NH RSA 3S9-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

OHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSlnformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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